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The year  under  rev iew has  been 
characterised  by different challenges that 
forced the board to re�ect on i ts 
commitment and resolved that “the KCT 
continues to be committed to the 
upliftment of Khayelitsha and its people”. 
Various strategies have been used to 
ensure that the Board together with the 
Executive Management achieve the set 
objectives in order to realise this
commitment.

EXECUTIVE
SUMMARY 01
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way forward that will assist entities to achieve their 
respective goals in line with their focus area and 
mandates. 

The KCT group has agreed to identify key personnel to 
capacitate the group in the light of project progress that 
was anticipated.  KCT will continue to be the shareholder 
of these entities and will report to its constituency the 
achievement or lack thereof annually, with the intention to 
improve Khayelitsha and its community.

The Covid 19 ushered new challenges for both KCT and 
the Retail tenants.   Lockdown negatively impacted some 
of the tenants which resulted in them not being able to 
pay rent thus negatively impacting KRetail’s revenue.    We 
have engaged local entrepreneur in the improvements 
that were required at the Retail centre.

A progressive relationship with the City of Cape Town has 
resulted in KCT submitting the housing development 
business plan for the development of 368 BNG units for the 
bene�t of Khayelitsha residents, this initiative will bene�t 
�rst time owners only. 

The Covid 19 resulted in some people being homeless 
due to lack of income;   resulting in some of these people 
illegally occupying the land earmarked for the Housing 
delivery of 368 units. Even though we had the possibility of 
negotiating with the occupants of the land, we were 
discouraged by the COCT as the disaster regulations do 
not allow for any eviction unless one has alternative 
accommodation for the victims.   This situation 
unfortunately delays our housing delivery.

Proposals have been submitted to the CoCT for purchase 
of land for the improvement of the existing Retail Centre 
and the development of Mixed-Use Development, we are 
still waiting for Council approval.   Once again KCT is 
unable to proceed with the development of this land as it 
is illegally occupied, until such time the disaster 
regulations have been lifted.

This year has been a challenging year for KCT, KCT lost its 
jewel, a dedicated and humble Accounting Of�cer who 
has been able to interact with all stakeholders of the 
Group.   This year took away from us our Mr.  Mkhululi 
Gaula (CEO) who passed on due to ill health, May His Soul 
Rest in Eternal Peace. 

Despite all the challenges and hinderances the 
Khayelitsha Community Trust has endured in the past 
�nancial year; we are committed to continue with the 
work we begun with Mkhululi; in his memory we 
endeavour to  materialise all of his good work on all 
projects.

Chairperson
Mrs Bulelwa Belu Toni

CHAIRPERSON'S REPORT
The year 2020 has been the year not to be remembered, 
the pandemic Covid 19 rigged havoc in Khayelitsha   The 
South African economy was on its downward spiral, 
causing more challenges amounting to lack of 
disposable income for most of Khayelitsha residents.  This 
new challenge in�uenced KCT’s strategy in mitigating the 
support for most of Khayelitsha residents severely affected 
by the emergence of this pandemic. On the other hand, 
we had the good news from the City of Cape Town that we 
can purchase the Hospital land within a one (1) year 
period. This meant that we focus on �nalising the 
negotiations with investors for this project.
  
The Trust has been interacting closely with the Task Team 
set up by Khayelitsha Development Forum (KDF), seeking 
to improve relationships with the community as well as 
promote a better understanding of the mandate of the 
Trust.  It is important that the trust is understood by the 
community , business sector and associates of 
Khayelitsha..   

This approach assisted KCT in publicising the good work 
accomplished over the years with the Khayelitsha 
Business Community and some of whom are not 
necessarily linked to the KDF.   This relationship had its own 
challenges as sometimes we had to revisit the objectives 
of setting up the Task Team.   A lot of information was made 
available to members of the task team and they formed 
part of planning workshops in order to have a better 
understanding of what is planned for each year project 
by project and how KCT anticipate bene�ciation for local 
entrepreneurs.

 The Covid – 19 lockdown which occurred during the third 
quarter of our Financial Year forced the management to 
slow down their planning processes and develop another 
approach of conducting business. There was an urgent 
need to develop a new way of conducting business as 
the Retail Centre was affected by the patrons who were 
affected by Covid 19.  This meant that the Management 
with the support of the Board, designed  an intervention 
that will assist in managing the pandemic so that it does 
not  negat ive ly  impact  the Reta i l  Cent re. The 
management together with the tenants agreed to 
introduce the use of masks, Sanitizers at the entrance of 
each shop, control the �ow of patrons at a particular time 
by respecting Social Distancing and testing temperatures 
at frequent intervals. This meant that some board 
members and the Management had to monitor each 
tenant’s performance daily with the assistance of the 
department of Health and Provincial Government. 
Khayelitsha was amongst the �rst areas to be the 
epicentre in Cape Town, which became a great concern 
to the Trust.   The Board agreed to prepare a budget for 
critical parcels that included basic masks, sanitizer per 
household and food for the households identi�ed by the 
Khayelitsha leaders as destitute. The CEO was part of 
those hand overs ensuring that the correct people do 
receive the parcels, risky the process as it was but we were 
committed. 

Non-Executive Directors of the subsidiaries �nalised 
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1. Introduction 
KCT has faced many challenging events over the past �ve 
years but none come close to the experiences of the last 
few months of 2020 following the outbreak of the COVID-
19 pandemic. These unprecedent times have shaped a 
future of working under “a new normal”; having a 
paradigm shift in the way we work and interact with our 
stakeholders. One of the biggest losses experienced by 
the KCT group has been the unfortunate passing of our 
CEO, Mr Mkhululi Gaula. The late Mr Gaula dedicated 
himself tirelessly to ensuring that the mandate of the Trust 
is achieved and was always passionate about ensuring 
the economic emancipation of the people of 
Khayelitsha. We are left with a massive task to ensure that 
his hard work realises fruition.    

The COVID-19 pandemic made it necessary for the Trust to 
re-assess its operational plans for the year under review. 
The Trust’s ambitions to develop on two of its signi�cant 
projects, the housing and retail developments was 
impacted by lockdown. Whilst we were faced with these 
challenges, Khayelitsha was also identi�ed as one of the 
hotspots for COVID-19 in the Western Cape. KCT therefore 
saw it crucial to give focus on assisting the most 
vulnerable people in the Khayelitsha community through 
various initiatives of “Flattening the Curve”. Some of the 
initiatives are dealt with in detail in the Integrated Report. 
In the following sections feedback is being shared on how 
far KCT has advanced in achieving some of its milestones 
amidst the most challenging times yet and what 
bottlenecks have impeded progress towards such 
attainment

FROM
THE DESK
OF THE 
ACTING CEO 

2. Performance over the last year 
The lockdown regulations that came into effect as a result 
of COVID-19 had an impact on the income generation, 
particularly rental collections at the KCT Mall. Rental reliefs 
and rental write-offs had to be implemented as an 
intervention to assist tenants as part of our strategy to 
retain all our tenants. I am happy to report that despite the 
loss of income experienced due to theimpact of 
lockdown for both us as landlords, as well as our tenants, 
we have managed to retain all our tenants. The �nancial 
impact on the loss in income resulted in total income for 
the year remaining the same as that of last year at 
R52,6million. 

One of the far-reaching impacts of the COVID-19 
pandemic has been on the net worth of the KCT Group 
which has reduced by R40million in the year under review 
due to a R44million decrease in the market valuation 
obtained for the KCT Mall. The decreased valuation has 
been as a result of a higher cap rate of cap rate utilised in 
the valuation calculations. The valuation calculations 
also took into account the high number of leases expiring 
within the next 12 months, together with the volatile 
property market and unprecedented times as a result of 
COVID-19. At the time of this report, the majority of the 
expired leases have since been renewed.    

The past �nancial year also saw the Khayelitsha 
Community Trust encountering serious setback in its 
project implementation targets. It has been previously 
reported on the delays in the land transfer applications 
that were submitted to the City of Cape Town dating back 
to year 2013 for the phase 1 & 2 for the housing land and 
2016 for various

 hospital and additional retail developments.  
Various interventions were made to resolve the impasse 
with the City of Cape Town and I am happy to announce 
that the City �nally agreed to the assertion that (1) The 
LAA signed between the City and KCT remains valid (2) 
Transfer the land to KCT at below market value as per the 
prescripts of Regulation 13 of the MATR. In August of this 
year, Council approved the transfer of the land to KCT for 
the development of the private hospital. Council is yet to 
approve the transfer of the land earmarked for the 
planned additional retail offering.
  
A few weeks after the Council approved the transfer of the 
land earmarked for the hospital precinct, the land was 
invaded by illegal occupants. Various interventions have 
been in effort to resolve this debacle, including amongst 
others a spoliation order and interdict that was granted to 
KCT by the High Court of Western Cape. Resolving this 
major crisis has been negatively impacted the country 
being under State of Disaster as a result of COVID-19. The 
Trust continues to make efforts to talk to various 
community stakeholders in effort to resolve the matter 
amicably.   

These land matters have a serious knock on the Trust’s 
ability to deliver on its mandate as much it is dependent 
on access to land and ability to raise working capital for 
�nalization of project plans, capacitation of human 
resource deployment and submission of approval 
applications. Despite this bleak picture, the ensuing report 
intends to share progress update on various project plans 
and deliverables whilst these related setbacks are being 
confronted.   
 
3. Organisational overview 
KCT recent ly  embarked on an organizat ional 
restructuring process which was aimed at capacitating its 
own internal structures to ensure that the Trust is able to 
withstand forthcoming project challenges and that its 
underlying subsidiaries are able to trade in a manner that 
contribute to its long-term sustainability. This process on its 
own has not been without its challenges as various factors 
had to be carefully considered.  

Central to this challenge is KCT’s ability to raise its own 
capital resources beyond the restructuring process. The 
core business trades of the Trust lie in retail, commercial 
and housing developments which are driven through the 
KBD Retail, KBD Properties and KHousing entities 
respectively. The ultimate objective of the restructuring 
process has been to ensure that these entities are 
strengthened to operate as true business operations 
completely independent of the Trust both in decision-
making and �nancial growth capabilities.   

4. Property Management Unit   
The Property Management Unit (PMU) continues to make 
tremendous strides in both facilities management and 
property management which has seen reduced rental 
defaults and increased recoveries . KBD Retail (Pty) Ltd 
which is a 100% subsidiary of KBD Management is 
responsible for the overall management of the KCT Mall 
and has invested substantially in personnel resources and 
acquisition of property management development 
applications/tools.  

 
 

The local community of Khayelitsha has direct bene�t of 
close to R10 million annually through providing 
maintenance & repair services, security services provision, 
cleaning, waste management and pest control services.  

5. Housing Update 
Considerable progress has been achieved towards 
implementation of Phase 1 housing project – a separate 
Housing Update Chapter – is included in this Annual 
Report. It is suf�ce at this stage to indicate that it is 
envisaged the second quarter of year-2021 will see 
heightened construction activity on housing delivery. This 
is however dependent on the resolve of the land invasions 
on the land earmarked for housing development in the 
CBD.  Both the City of Cape Town and KCT have resolved to 
deliver institutional subsidy housing product as part of the 
368 Phase 1 typologies.  

In its completion the Khayelitsha CBD residential project 
will comprise a variety or mix of housing units ranging from 
subsidized units to middle income housing stock. A 
market study on Khayelitsha residential and commercial 
demand/income patterns was consultants to assist the 
Trust to have a �rm overview of the most suitable 
interventions to address the public and private 
infrastructure needs of the Khayelitsha community in 
general terms.   
 
6. Conclusion 
The effect of COVID-19, has been signi�cant, especially for 
the short term. The recovery phase demands absolute 
attention and priority to accelerate the pace of change 
and continue implementing, and adapting where 
necessary, a robust strategic plan. As much as it is pivotal 
to demonstrate prudent use of organizational resources, 
the Trust faces the major challenge of delivering on its 
stated and agreed development objectives.  Though KCT 
has once again been awarded an unquali�ed audit 
opinion, the community in general is eager to see 
practical project-related action that is directed at 
improving their socioeconomic livelihoods.  

I would like to express sincere gratitude to the KCT Board of 
Trustees for the support in the efforts of the administration 
in driving these milestones. It has been an extremely 
challenging year for the KCT Group and the Board 
availed themselves for all the Special Board meetings that 
had to be called to address the crises that we faced 
during these unprecedent times. I would also like to thank 
all staff members for their passion, dedication and hard 
work, and for delivering during what has been a turbulent 
time.  
Despite the dif�cult conditions, we have certain strategic 
advantages that will guide and support us during the 
return to some form of normalisation of operations, which 
we will de�ne as time goes . 
 
 
 

Samela Titus-Nabe 
Acting Chief Executive Of�cer 
 

INTEGRATED REPORT 2020 INTEGRATED REPORT 2020

8 9



INTEGRATED REPORT 2020 INTEGRATED REPORT 2020

The Trust’s strategy can be best summed up by the byline: 
simple, relatable, doable. KCT strives to attract business 
and development partners who share its vision and 
values, as well as build relationships with investors who 
believe in its aim of developing and empowering 
communities. The Trust aims to deliver a diversi�ed asset 
portfolio comprising commercial, residential, civic, 
educational, infrastructure and retail properties that 
generate annuity income to its bene�ciaries. Its objective 
is to ensure that its properties are internally managed, 
increase in value and empower the community in which 
it operates.
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KCT was founded by the City of Cape Town in 2003 to 
develop commercial, residential and community facilities 
in Khayelitsha. These developments help generate 
economic opportunities and uplift the lives of residents. 
The Trust, previously a municipal entity, now trades as a 
non- pro�t organisation with public bene�t organisation 
tax status. A LAA entered into between the City and KCT, 
allows KCT to assist with the KBD development and hold 
equity in associated developments, the returns of which 
are used in other developments.

KCT’s vision is to empower the Khayelitsha community 
through the promotion of social and economic 
development.

KCT’s mission is to advance the KBD by developing 
commercial, residential and communal facilities.

KCT’s strategic partnerships with key stakeholders 

The community directly bene�ts from the improvements 
to the land, as well as associated  transactions that are 
aimed at bene�ting the community through social and 
economic empowerment 

 The KBD has a very strong multi-sectoral impact

Additionally to the trustees that were originally 
appointed by the City, the community is also 
represented on the board of trustees by elected 
members of the KDF. 

Preferential arrangement: Immediate access to land   
at preferential rates 

In addition to KCT’s status as a community trust, it has 
also put in place sound corporate governance; 
therefore transparency is key to its operations and 
planning

To resolve with the City of Cape Town impasse     
pertaining to the Land Availability Agreement in order    
to enable implementation of all planned projects. 

To ensure that the housing project in the Khayelitsha    
Central Business District (“KBD”) provides housing    
that meets the demand and preferences of residents 
of Khayelitsha and is competitively priced and 
affordable.  
 
To capacitate KCT and its commercial arms to     
ensure that they are able to plan, implement and    
deliver projects and services required by and for the    
community of Khayelitsha. 

To enhance the KBD by developing infrastructure,    
facilities and amenities that provide business     
operations, public services and recreational activities    
for Khayelitsha residents 

To continue to improve the functionality of the Retail    
Centre and improve retail offering in the CBD

To ensure human capital development programs    
are put in place to augment the local community    
entrepreneurial skills levels. 

To raise additional funds to achieve the above and
to pay off outstanding loan amounts as ef�ciently as
possible. KCT Group to be self-sustainable.

BACKGROUND

VISION

MISSION

OBJECTIVES KEY VALUE PROPOSITION
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The year under rev iew has been 
characterised by different challenges 
that forced the board to re�ect on its 
commitment and resolved that “the KCT 
continues to be committed to the 
upliftment of Khayelitsha and its people” .  
Various strategies have been used to 
ensure that the Board together with the 
Executive Management achieve the set 
objectives in order to realise this 
commitment.

ORGANIZATIONAL
OVERVIEW AND

BUSINESS MODEL
02
CHAPTER



4

3

2

1 Land transactions  |  Contingent income from 
Investment companies  |  Grant funding.

Property and facilities   |  Management 
Development fees  |  Management fees

Leasing income  |  Promotions

Housing sales and Rentals
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The Trust’s long-term sustainability is dependent on the performance of its investment companies. Historically, it has 
experienced operational and sustainability challenges with its subsidiaries KBD Management and KBD Housing, but has 
overcome a number of these, and is proud to report that phase one of the housing project is firmly on track, with phase two in 
planning. This will result in an improved income stream for KBD Housing from the sale of housing units as well as rental income. 
KBD Retail, which owns the KCT Mall continues to be self sustainable with the Mall enjoying full occupancy. This has generated 
surpluses and additional income, which are controlled by means of legal agreements with the financier.



Continuous public participation is taking place on a 
sustained basis. The opinion gathering process has been a 
result of the Trust embarking upon a public participation 
initiative to market and obtain buy-in from the local 
community on the nature of typologies envisaged for 
Phase 1. The public participation process is always an 
intense drive that includes consultations with all relevant 
role players comprising the City of Cape Town's sub-
councils, local NGOs, ward committees, the Khayelitsha 
Development Forum (KDF) and direct communication 
with potential bene�ciaries/homeowners. The bene�ciary 
administrator together with the community liaison of�cer 
(CLO) have been appointed to facilitate the identi�cation 
of bene�ciaries as well as ensure direct liaison with the 
community on all project-related matters. 

HOUSING PROJECT UPDATE

Signing of the Phase 2 housing development JV agreement between KBD Housing 
(the late Mr. Mkhu Gaula) and Zakhe Projects (Mr Vuyani Ngcuka)

The site layout for Phase 1 roll-out plan is depicted in the 
diagram below:

The slides below depict the typologies planned for Phase 1: 

Duplex units:

Single residential Units:

1. Introduction

The Khayelitsha Community Trust's (KCT) overall mandate is 
to, amongst others, provide a mix of residential opportunities 
that would respond to the growing housing need in 
Khayelitsha and further deliver on human settlements that 
formalize to a great extent the housing landscape within the 
area as opposed to the mushrooming shack dwelling that is 
so prevalent. However, central to the attainment of these 
objectives is identi�cation of Khayelitsha-based companies 
that can establish themselves as a leading force within the 
mainstream construction environment. KHousing, which is 
one of KCT's entities is charged with the primary responsibility 
of ensuring that these objectives are advanced and 
sustained. In this ensuing report, progress update is being 
shared on project-speci�c efforts to achieve the latter. 

2. Background

In 2005 KCT signed a land availability agreement with the 
City of Cape Town Municipality for purposes of developing 
residential units on a 23-hectare piece of land. A resolution for 
the development of 10 hectares has already been passed by 
the local council. The Trust, through its housing subsidiary, 
KHousing, has completed servicing Phase 1 comprising 368 
units on 6 hectares. For phase 1 it has been resolved with the 
City that KCT will play the role of the support organisation and 
the City the role of developer.
Currently, the process is at a stage where the main contractor 
has been appointed for the construction of top structures. 
The installation of electrical services will also be subject to 
funding agreements being negotiated with Eskom as 
Khayelitsha is an Eskom electri�cation area.
Simultaneously, Phase 2 comprising the balance of 4 ha is 
also being planned in partnership with a company known as 
Zakhe/VDZ Joint Venture.  The intention on this phase is to 
develop gap/FLISP housing which will attract income 
earners within Khayelitsha and surrounding areas. Viability 
studies are being �nalized and a business plan will soon be 
submitted to the local municipality for approval. A team of 
consultants comprising the architect, quantity surveyor, 
project manager, etc. has already been appointed to drive 
the aforementioned deliverables.  

1. Phase 1 Progress

As mentioned earlier, Phase 1 will consist of 368 residential 
units of two –to three-bedroom units. The land has already 
been serviced through funding from the Urban Settlements 
Development Programme (USDG) in terms of installing bulk 
infrastructure and internal services. The electrical services 
are as yet to be installed and the appointment of main 
contractor will be commensurate with the engagement of 
the electrical contractor. 
 In driving all planning-related initiatives, KHousing is working 
very closely with the City of Cape Town's local subcouncil 
of�ce. A Project Steering Committee (PSC) comprising key 
stakeholders within the local community has been 
appointed under the local municipality's auspices as the 
project is a BNG (low cost housing project) and the 
bene�ciaries must be approved through PSC involvement. 
Negotiations are underway to partner with known capacity 
building entities within the construction sector to ensure that 
a skills development program is tailor-made to bene�t 
Khayelitsha-based smaller companies. At the end of the 
project these companies will be incubated to improve on 
their CIDB gradings and agreements with companies like 
NURCHA will be pursued to ensure that project �nancing is 
not a hindrance for participation by emerging contractors.  

General plans application that had to be resubmitted on 
this site bordering Spine Road and Walter Sisulu Road 
have been approved. Previously approved building 
plans have had to be resubmitted due to the changes int 
eh CoCT by-laws and lapsed validity. 
Bene�ciaries are to be sourced from the host ward as well 
as from the Greater Khayelitsha (all wards) targeting 
people with Special Needs (the elderly & disabled) and 
military veterans. A business plan to secure project 
funding has been submitted to the local authority for 
approval. 

It is envisaged that within the �rst quarter of year-2021 
construction activity on Phase 1 will take place. The Trust 
through KHousing has developed an empowerment plan 
with clear delivery targets to ensure that local enterprises 
and contractors bene�t substantially from the housing 
project. It can also be noted that the layout plan identi�es 
public open spaces that will be converted to community 
facilities for children playgrounds thus pioneering the 
ideals of a true integrated human settlements project. 
Already, the housing area is surrounded by crucial 
community facilities including a sports precinct, i.e. a 
cricket oval & a public swimming pool, a council-owned 
multi-purpose centre as well as primary and secondary 
schools

The Trust is con�dent that an amicable solution will be 
reached to resolve the land invasion that are currently an 
impediment for the planned Housing project to cot

1. Phase 2 Planning Progress

The commencement of the mixed-use Phase 2 
implementation to be developed on a 4-hectare piece of 
land is envisaged to run parallel the construction program 
for the �rst phase. The plan is to develop a mix of rental and 
outright sale FLISP/Gap units. The diagram above outlines 
a conceptual development approach for the precinct 
with medium density apartment blocks, 80 to 130 dwellings 
per hectare average as the main land use. A single 
residential component is conceptually proposed to 
extend the residential typology and link up with a portion of 
the existing Phase 1 single residential precinct. Densities of 
higher than 45du/ha along with double-storey, semi-
detached units are also proposed.

A small portion of retail is conceptually envisaged for the 
southern land portion along Walter Sisulu Rd, which could 
accommodate small neighbourhood type line shops and 
of�ces at ground �oor and possibly, residential on the �rst 
and even second �oor. Parking and pedestrian oriented 
hard landscaping can be provided on the 10m wide 
services servitude. In co-development partnership with 
Zakhe Projects/VDZ JV feasibilities are being �nalized in 
order to commence with marketing & planning approvals 
submission processes. 

Similarly, the empowerment objectives will be adhered to 
during the implementation of this phase.   
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KCT Mall remains the �agship development of Khayelitsha Community Trust. The highly successful 19 254m² shopping 
mall situated in the heart of Khayelitsha’s CBD. it is positioned at a highly favourable location, close to public transport 
nodes and has proved over the  years to be catalyst of economic growth within the Khayelitsha region.  it has been fully 
let-out since its inception in 2005.

KCT Mall is owned by KBD Retail Properties (Pty) Ltd, a wholly owned subsidiary of Khayelitsha Community Trust.

Khayelitsha Community Trust’s property business is managed in-house. The Property Management Unit (PMU) was 
established in July 2017 and have been successfully operational ever since. The Property Management Unit is a one-
stop property and facilities management department said for the Leasing Management that is outsourced to BB 
Properties.

During the reporting period of 2019/20 the Property Management Unit has committed to delivering KCT Mall’s retail 
spaces that positively impacted the environment of the tenants who occupy them. KCT Management has ensured that 
its operations are driven by experienced and knowledgeable individuals who take the time to truly understand the 
needs of Tenants.

During 2019/20 KCT took on a more joined-up, collaborative and participative approach to services provided by local 
Khayelitsha Service Providers and Individuals that enabled better outcomes for everyone and increased opportunities 
for some Khayelitsha people to shape their own lives.

Property Management Unit (PMU) Report

For Year Ended 30 June 2020
KCT Mall Operations 

Board Member Size Of Property
Gla
Property Value
Existence
Tenancy
Occupancy
Annual Average Growth

Board Member 47 343m²
19 326m²
R319million
15 Years
64
100%
21,6%

Property Portfolio Summary

Our Property and Facilities Management continued with maintenance projects that improved service delivery and 
exploring alternative delivery models. In addressing future demands of a growing and ageing infrastructure, we 
maximized the uses of open spaces of our asset. We instigated and generated
additional income with innovative space utilization in an effort to become more ef�cient. Consequently, we improved the 
way we work, the service we deliver to our Tenants and the quality of our outputs. These changes are evidenced in the 
ever-increasing Promotional Income that in some instances, is used for redistribution into the Khayelitsha Community by 
way of donations, support and assistance for empowerment and upliftment initiatives.

During 2019/20 KCT Management moved towards maximizing the utilisation of KCT’s property portfolio to a modern-�t 
–for-purpose portfolio operating from the minimum number of internal resources, manipulating and utilising �exible ways 
of working whilst retaining a customer focus.

We delivered on a learning programme for our Facilities Of�cer, Community Liaison Of�cer and the Centre Manager that 
enhanced this aim.

We moved towards an asset management plan identifying planned preventative maintenance regimes to stretch our 
ageing asset’s infrastructure life span.

We reviewed our building facilities management services to remodel its operation for more simplistic value-added 
outputs that can in future be performed by deserving local Khayelitsha based service providers. Such reviews came with 
challenges to reduce operating costs without compromising on quality
workmanship and service delivery.
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We continue to promote a safe and healthy shopping environment for all shoppers and tenants by periodically deep 
cleaning our hardscape areas and more speci�cally the municipal servitude that split KCT Mall that is occupied by 
informal traders.

Towards the end of Quarter 4 of 19/20, focus for services was placed on the response to COVID-19 which resulted in 
transforming the way we worked in order to provide essential services. We continued to align priorities with those set in 
the COVID-19 recovery plan and ensured that we support recovery whilst retaining the elements of best transformation 
and making those changes meaningful. Our Tenants were also faced with huge �nancial challenges during lockdown. 
The impact of loss of income from COVID-19 due to restrictive trade and forced closures of Tenants had a knock-on 
effect on our rental income that we are still struggling to overcome.

KCT Mall has shown a decline in growth of income. This is primarily due to COVID-19 Lockdown that forced all retailers to 
close on 26 March 2020. Subsequently, our rental income declined signi�cantly while our operations were still running 
unabated.

We reviewed our previous year’s introduction of renewable energy sources to reduce utility cost by implementing a 
photovoltaic (PV) solar energy solution for KCT Malls’ perimeter lighting . We plan to improve on to this installation 
over the next 3 �nancial years.
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The water we harvest for our �ushing toilets and urinals have positively impacted on our water consumption across the 
Mall.
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Sheru Cleaning, Security and Construction (Pty) Ltd
Bravo Promotions
Treatly Projects
Braccalinx (Pty) Ltd
Sebenzela Ekhaya
Bongo Pest Control
Hlumisa Trading
Xolani’s Truck Services
Yanta Plumbing
Amahala Trading
Respire to Inspire (Pty) Ltd
Phindiso Holdings
Silithemba Construction
Inyameko Trading
Real Gates Steelworks
Waste Circle
Eagle Age Protection Services
Antartica Chillers
Banlo Projects (Pty) Ltd
Amahala Trading
Ithemba Photography
Mbele Social Concepts
Lathitha SSP
Mthombeni Holdings (Pty) Ltd
Zia Construction
Bhayi and Partners
Monwabisi KA
Yeshua Reigns
Kotyi Zinbambi Co.
Titakwe Construction (Pty) Ltd
Athini Plant Hire and Civils (Pty) Ltd
Maphallang Projects
Amigo Construction and Projects
Arise in Style (Pty) Ltd
Inyameko Trading
Miles Construction (Pty) Ltd
Biz Training
Siyemazweni Architectural and Engineering Solutions
Bulela Basebenzi Construction
Umthombo Wamamfene
Excellent Keys
Saphumelela Construction & Cleaning Services
Sisonke Joints Construction
Jika Jika Media (Pty) Ltd
Dodo Construction
Tshetu Construction (Pty) Ltd
Yolandi Gxilishe Services
Mosho Services
Zinto Marketing
Fumanekile
Braso Trading
Lulwazi Sanitizers
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SERVICE PROVIDERS WHO BENEFITTED 
FROM WORK OPPORUNITIES DURING
THE REPORTING PERIOD
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KCT STAKEHOLDER PLENARY
On the 11 October 2019 a stakeholder engagement 
workshop was held in Khayelitsha (Isivivana Centre) 
from10h00 – 14h00. 

The workshop was widely attended by all  KCT 
stakeholders. KCT has since developed a stakeholder 
strategic engagement report that will address the 
stakeholder identi�cation and mapping within the KCT 
business.

Stakeholder identi�cation is one of the most important  
process in the 7-step model by which stakeholders are  
highly in�uential and can impact KCT’s operations and 
business growth.

Stakeholder identi�cation and mapping was conducted 
to: 

Identify and understand stakeholders that have impact 
and interest to KCT’s operations and business 
development.

  

The Purpose of this stakeholder planning is to ensure 
monitoring:

Updating stakeholder related information as this is 
impor tant to keep track of any issues, events, 
engagements and to ensure consistency throughout the 
organization.
Stakeholder management sessions going forward will be 

utilized to review and monitor post engagement reports, 
news, social media and activations which have taken 
place within the KCT business.

The pertinent issues that have been raised, will require 
contingency plans to be discussed, activated, therefore 
upon targeted resolution dates; KCT would need to revert 
to the stakeholders. If no contingency plans are available, 
issues or crisis management is to be activated if and 
when required.

In a nutshell the event was a major success, all 
stakeholders complimented KCT for hosting this workshop 
and updating them formally on all developments. There 
has been a few request that have been brought forward 
to the trustees for consideration, which have been 
tabulated on a detailed report held by the Khayelitsha 
Community Trust.

The stakeholders at large have pleaded with KCT to host 
these engagements continuously as this aligns all 
stakeholders. KCT has been tasked to issue regular 
newsletters with milestones and achievements to be 
circulated, as well as establish an independent 
stakeholder invitee list. We are happy to report that this has 
been achieved.

Furthermore, all unemployed graduates are called upon 
to come register at KCT for circulation and referrals to any 
upcoming projects that might arise or presented to the 
Trust.

In the end, the Deputy Chairperson of the Trust appealed 
to all local community leaders including the councilors to 
continue to lend support to KCT in its efforts to continue to 
implement the vision of the original founders of the Trust. 
The overriding fact is that the task ahead is huge and 
requires everybody to work sel�essly towards the 
achievement of the greater goal. 

To identify stakeholder ensuring prioritization of
stakeholders.
Ensure more coordinated engagements, creating 
better resource usage of stakeholder management 
teams
Updating the stakeholders at large on any and all
developments executed within the Khayelitsha 
Community Trust.

INTEGRATED REPORT 2020INTEGRATED REPORT 2020

26 27



EVENTS

Christmas is a time for giving, sharing and loving, there’s 
never been a Christmas like the one we had to experience, 
the one of 2020, Covid-19 has truly left an undesirable gap in 
people’s hearts.

Albeit COVID-19; KCT braved the dif�culties and entertained 
its patrons at the KCT Mall. The usual competitions were run 
to entertain our guests and ensure that the Christmas spirit 
was kept alive.

Christmas at the KCT Mall

Hand over at Baphumelele
The Board agreed to prepare a budget for critical parcels 
that included basic masks, sanitizer per household and food 
for the households identi�ed by the Khayelitsha leaders as 
destitute. The CEO was part of those hand overs ensuring 
that the correct people do receive the parcels, risky the 
process as it was but we were committed.

KCT  InitiativesCOVID-19
KCT launched an awareness campaign in the community on 
the gravity of COVID 19
(preventive measures, symptoms) also assuring that people 
abide by the Lockdown rules as
stated by the South African Government.
These are only but a few of the initiatives that KCT embarked 
upon.

3.1 Stone Dragon -Kids Soup
Ÿ This programme was mainly about visiting all the wards in 

Khayelitsha in aims to trying to assist destitute children and 
their families within the community.

3.2 Radio & amp; Social Media Awareness
Ÿ KCT partnered with Radio Zibonele as well as Online social 

media platforms in aims to disseminate information on 
Covid -19.

3.3 Loud Hailing Campaign
Ÿ KCT embarked on a loud hailing programme within the 

council wards of Khayelitsha, informing the communities of 
the preventative measures, to assist in avoiding the rapid 
contracting of the virus.

3.4 Community Awareness
Ÿ Informal Traders Awareness was conducted in for of 

distributing sanitisers &amp; masks; further KCT assisted in 
the disinfection of the Vuyani Market Stalls

The above is only but a few of the event which KCT and the team embarked upon on the past
�nancial year. It indeed was a bleak year, however not all has been absolute darkness.

INTEGRATED REPORT 2020

28 29



Background
KCT Group has a risk management system in place for managing and monitoring strategic risks as well as identifying 
emerging risks that could threaten the achievement of strategic objectives. 
The KCT Group risk management framework requires that the Board and management identify risks that may impact the 
achievement of the Group's objectives. Management have a responsibility to monitor these risks during the year and to 
ensure that suf�cient controls are in place to reduce their impact on KCT Group should they materialize. In instances where 
current controls are perceived to be unsatisfactory or unable to control identi�ed risks within KCT Group's risk tolerance 
levels, management are required to implement mitigation plans and to account quarterly to the Trustees on progress 
made in implementing these plans. In addition to reporting on this progress, management are responsible for identifying 
and reporting on new risks that emerge during the day-to-day management of KCT Group's business.

Enterprise-wide risk management
The primary objective of risk management is to identify and to manage the uncertainties that may prevent the KCT Group 
from achieving its strategic and operational business objectives. The risks facing KCT group and its operations result from 
factors both external and internal to the organisation.
Risk management protects and adds value to the KCT Group and its stakeholders through supporting the organisations' 
objectives by:
Ÿ Providing a framework for an organisation that enables future activity to take place in a consistent and controlled 

manner
Ÿ Improving decision making, planning and prioritisation by comprehensive and structured understanding of business 

activity, volatility and project opportunities / threats
Ÿ Contributing to more ef�cient use of capital and resources within the organisation
Ÿ Protecting and enhancing assets and the organisation's image
Ÿ Developing and supporting people and the organisation's knowledge base
Ÿ Optimising operational ef�ciency

Approach
In order to understand the signi�cant risks facing KCT Group, our approach sought to identify the most signi�cant inherent 
risks facing the Group.

Our methodology is based on the principle that
Ÿ Trustees and Executive management are active participants in the risk identi�cation and assessment process.
Ÿ We have found that a facilitated series of discussions is the most effective manner to identify critical risks and risk areas 

that will need to be addressed through the activities of Internal Audit and Management.
Ÿ Management uses a risk register as a tool to manage risks. Management regularly reviews the impact on the residual 

risk that remains as risk response strategies and controls take effect:
Ÿ The key activities planned to address the Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM”) objectives, associated activities and 

initiatives include:  
Ÿ (a) Continue with embedding ERM into the business 
Ÿ (b) Track progress on mitigations for the business Risks
Ÿ (c) Develop and agree with risk owners on the risk tolerance levels
Ÿ (d) Monitor performance within risk tolerance levels

RISK MANAGEMENT
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Flexibility of KCT structure as a development partner to both private and public sector 
Prominent land position to which KCT has development rights
Less rigidity in decision-making as KCT is not bound by municipal legislation
Accessibility to Khayelitsha community and other stakeholders
Ability to extend its mandate in the future to working outside the boundaries of the Khayelitsha CBD

Zero default rate in the current �nancial obligations with �nanciers despite the tough economic

impact of COVID-19

Receiving consecutive unquali�ed audits since 2008

52 local companies have been procured to render services at the KCT Mall to the value of over R8.8m 

and over 20 local labourers procured individually

Spreading awareness of the gravity of COVID-19, providing PPE and food to families in Khayelitsha

most hard hit by the impact of COVID-19 as part of the & quot;Flattening the Curve in Khayelitsha & 

quot; initiatives

Partnership with Informal Trader Association of Khayelitsha Mall in providing storage facilities for 

thetraders and thus reducing transportation costs

Provision of use of the KCT Business Park at below market rentals to Khayelitsha entrepreneurs in trades 

of Bakery, Arts & Crafts

Sponsorships and contributions made towards various Khayelitsha youth excelling in various �elds as

well as sponsorships to Khayelitha activities such as arts and recreational activities.

Continued 100% occupancy of the KCT Mall since its inception

Economic interventions during COVID-19 lockdown to assist our tenants from closing down of 

businesses

In-house Property Management Unit continues to operate ef�ciently with the Facilities

Management divison empowering more Khayelitsha-based contractors and workers.

Improved recovery of outstanding debt from tenants

Continue to provide Khayelitsha based small businesses such as Spinach King an enabling 

environment to operate their kiosk from the KCT Mall

The below diagram outlines the KCT Group risk management process 

Understand the organisation
Mission

Business Plan strategic objectives
Tactical Objectives
Operational plans

Set the framework for 
risk management 

Risk policy
Risk appetite

Risk rating critea

Risk asesssment
Identify risk
Assess risks

Risk Treatment
Tolerate

Treat
Transfer

Terminate

Risk 
Management 

Process

RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

The Trust continues to maximum the bene�ts of having in place a group structure that has not been duplicated 
anywhere else  in the country. Through the forged relations with the private sector, local, provincial and national 
governments as well as the Khayelitsha stakeholders, the KCT Group is able to access various opportunities. 
Re�ecting on the Trust's current position provides  a critical opportunity to assess internal and external factors that 
offer opportunities yet pose risks to development. 

Delays in land transfers and thus impacting funding
Recent spike in land invasions in Khayelitsha and surrounding areas
Risk of the impact of Covid-19 pandemic on business and the general environment of the Trust.
Prolonged decision-making processes, both internally and by the City Council
Relationship challenges with stakeholders

PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

RISKS & OPPORTUNITIES

Opportunities:

Risks:
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At the commencement of each year, the Trustees as 
well as the Directors of the Trust's investment 
companies, hold a strategic workshop to review the 
performance of the KCT Group against set targets, 
assess challenges and set the strategy for the year 
ahead. The outcome of this process becomes the Trust's 
and its investment companies' strategic plan. The 
Strategic Plan of the Trust takes into account the KCT 
Group strategy.  

The Trust has aligned its performance measurement 
approach with the strategic objectives as set out in the 
Trust's Strategic Plan. Despite hampered delivery 
caused by COVID-19 lockdown regulations as well as 
the recent spike of land invasions, KCT and its subsidiary 
companies continued to strive throughout the year to 
ensure progress is made in pursuit of achieving its set 
objectives.

The following objectives were set by the Trust for the 
reporting period of 2019/20:
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Khayelitsha Community Trust 
(“KCT” or “the Trust”) 

Year ended 30 June 2020

PERFORMANCE
REPORT
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KCT to engage with 
City of Capet Town's  
Property 
Management  
Department  in order 
to nalize outcomes of 
the Senior Counsel 
legal  opinion sought 
and submitted by KCT 
to the City on the 
matter pertaining to 
the dispute of the land 
rates

Land rate impasse 
resolved with the City 
of Cape Town

Community 
beneciation projects 
identied by KCT as 
requested by the City 
as part of the 
conditions for the 
discounted land 
price

Land sale 
agreements between 
KCT and the City of 
Cape Town are 
drafted and signed 
by the City's 
attorneys as per City 
protocol.

Land rate impasse resolved 
with the City of Cape Town 
with the City agreeing to pass 
the land at a discount to KCT 
with conditions set.

Community beneciation 
projects identied by KCT and 
submitted to City's Property 
Management Department

Land sale agreement for 
hospital precinct not yet 
drafted; pending KCT to 
nalize the transaction 
agreements with the hospital 
operators. 

Mixed-use retail land 
agreements still pending 
formal Council approval.

Target achieved.

Target achieved.

Delays from identied hospital 
operators which have caused 
KCT to source alternative 
operators. 

Error by the City in report in the 
recommendation report 
submitted for the Council 
meeting which led to the report 
being withdrawn

Mixed-use retail land 
pending Council 
approval as it was 
withdrawn from the last 
Council meeting due to 
error in the 
recommendation report. 
Report to be tabled to 
Council end October 
2020.

Community beneciation 
projects were amended  
by the Sub-council 10 
through a Public 
Participation process and 
accepted by KCT.

The correct report is to be 
tabled at a Council 
meeting to be held end 
October 2020

01/07/19- 
30/06/20

1. To nalize with the City of Cape Town land sale agreements for both retail and hospital land parcels.

Performance
Indicators

Target
Performance

Actual
Performance

Reason for variance and
remedial action Revised Target

Budget
Dates

Top structure funding 
for phase 1 housing 
approved by the City 
of Cape Town

Appointment of the 
main contractor by 
KBD Housing as part 
of the requirements 
for the top structure 
funding application 
to the City of Cape 
Town

Submission of 
business plan to the 
City as the ultimate 
requirement for top 
structure funding to 
be approved by the 
City 

The beneciaries to 
be identied for the 
368 phase 1 housing 
units

Main contractor appointed 
by KBD Housing 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Business plan submitted to the 
City of Cape Town for 
approval 
 
 
 
. 
 
The process has commenced 
with the City providing a list 
containing 840 beneciaries 
for the appointed beneciary 
administrator to verify.  The 
City, through sub-council 10, 
together with the Project 
Steering Committee have 
agreed on the beneciary 
allocation from across 
Khayelitsha.

Target achieved 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Target achieved 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The beneciary verication 
process can only be nalized 
once the business plan is 
approved and a project 
number is allocated to the 
project by the City of Cape 
Town.

The beneciary 
verication process is an 
ongoing process 
throughout the project. 

01/07/19 - 
30/06/20

2.  To ensure that the housing project in the Khayelitsha Central Business District provides housing that meets the
demand and preferences of residents of Khayelitsha and is competitively priced and affordable. 

Performance
Indicators

Target
Performance

Actual
Performance

Reason for variance and
remedial action Revised Target

Budget
Dates

Top structure funding 
for phase 1 housing 
approved by the City 
of Cape Town

Commence with 
construction of phase 
1 housing unit

The conversion of the Phase 1 
368 units to a BNG product 
and the resuscitation of the 
project after project being 
put on hold necessitated 
previously completed 
processes to be refreshed.   

Progress made includes the 
following: 
Ÿ Main contractor 

appointed
Ÿ Resubmission of sub-

division due to the 
previous one having 
expired

Ÿ Review of all building 
plans due to expiry of 
previous plans 

Ÿ Beneciary list received 
from  the City of Cape 
Town 

Ÿ Beneciary administrator 
commenced with 
verication 

 
The project has now been 
affected by the recent land 
invasion and further delays 
may be experienced

Due to delays experienced on 
the last quarter of the year due 
to COVID-19 lockdown 
regulations, the resubmission of 
some of the required plans was 
delayed and therefore the 
necessary approvals have also 
been delayed.

Commencement of 
construction is envisaged 
from March 2021 pending 
the resolve of the recent 
land invasions. 

01/07/19 - 
30/06/20

Performance
Indicators

Target
Performance

Actual
Performance

Reason for variance and
remedial action Revised Target

Budget
Dates

3. To capacitate KCT and its commercial arms to ensure that they are able to plan, implement and deliver projects
 and services required by and for the community of Khayelitsha. 2019/20

KCT Group restructure 
in place enabling an 
environment 
attractive for 
investment and tax 
efciency for future 
development

Business plans and 
nancial projections 
of all entities to be 
developed and 
approved. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 All investment 
companies to be 
capacitated to 
ensure delivery of set 
objectives

The following entities have 
presented their business 
strategy to the shareholders: 

Ÿ KBD Management / KBD 
Holdings

Ÿ KBD Retail Holdings
Ÿ KBD Housing 
 
 
 
Appointment of the rst 
Directors has been nalized 
by the shareholder.

KBD Properties to nalize its 
business plan before 11 
December 2020 Board meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The appointment of staff and 
additional Directors will be 
nalized by the current Directors 
as per the plans of the 
respective companies 
 
 

Commencement of 
construction is envisaged 
from March 2021 pending 
the resolve of the recent 
land invasions. 

01/07/19 – 
30/06/20 
 & 
Ongoing2019/20

2019/20

2019/20
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Consider alternative 
proposals for the 
future retail 
development 
expansion

Appointment of 
service providers to 
assist with further 
investigations 
required for the 
planned 
development. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Finalise development 
scheme

Additionally to the Structural 
engineer who was appointed 
in October 2019 to conduct 
an assessment on the 
structural design for the 
planned development; the 
following disciplines have also 
been appointed: and done 
some work to conceptualize 
development opportunities 
and feasible scenarios: 
 
Ÿ Architect 
Ÿ Quantity Surveyor 
 

Work has been done to 
conceptualize development 
opportunities and feasible 
scenarios.  
 

A task team has been 
established by the KBD 
Management Board to 
expedite planning processes 
to include into the 
development scenarios and 
make recommendations to 
the KBD Management / 
Holdings Board.

Target achieved 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Work considered by the Task 
Team include: - Consideration 
of various development 
scenarios and made 
recommendations to the Board 
- Consideration of tenanting  - 
Rationalize the feasible 
scenarios

The updating of the 
feasibilities will be an 
ongoing process until the 
plans of the alternative 
scheme are nalised. This 
process is aimed to be 
concluded by the rst 
quarter of 2021 calendar 
year.  

01/07/19- 
30/06/20

4. To continue to improve the functionality of the Retail Centre and improve retail offering in CBD. 

Performance
Indicators

Target
Performance

Actual
Performance Reason for variance Revised Target

Budget
Dates

Partnership 
development with 
relevant service 
providers 

Community 
education 
development 
initiatives 

 
 
 2 Partnerships with 
relevant service 
providers established 

 
 
 
 
 

Back-to-school drive led by 
KCT to assist Baphumele 
Orphanage to help 120 
destitute and homeless 
learners with stationery and 
school shoes. 

Partnerships established with 2 
companies as follows: 
Ÿ -Ongoing Partnership with 

False Bay College in 
providing internship 
training to unemployed 
young graduates 

Ÿ Partnership with Informal 
Trader's Association of 
Khayelitsha Mall in 
assisting the traders with 
business operations such 
as storage. 

Target achieved 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

.

30/06/20 

30/06/20 

5. To ensure human capital development programs are put in place to augment the local community
entrepreneurial skills levels

Performance
Indicators

Target
Performance

Actual
Performance Reason for variance Revised Target

Budget
Dates

2019/20

2019/20

Acquisition of 
additional funds to 
contribute to KCT 
nancial self-
dependence & 
ultimate sustainability 

Additional funds 
acquired through 
implementation of 
the fundraising 
strategy 

The KCT Group fundraising 
strategy is based on KCT's 
investment companies 
leveraging its asset base in all 
planned developments to 
ensure perpetuity of income 
to the Group. 

Though the implementation of 
the fundraising strategy has 
been impacted by delays in 
land matters, the KCT Group 
nancial sustainability has 
been further impacted by the 
following: 
Ÿ COVID-19 lockdown and 

its impact on the 
operations of the Mall 

Ÿ The negative impact of 
the mall led to reduced 
recovery of rental income; 
reduced income from 
promotions revenue due 
to promotions being 
prohibited under 
lockdown 

Ÿ Overall strain on cashows 
as a result of the above 

Ÿ

Ÿ The restructure of the of 
the KCT Group which will 
result in the consolidation 
of the land and buildings 
of the Retail Centre to be 
in one entity. This will allow 
for a better investment 
structure for any potential 
investor 

The impactful implementation 
of the fundraising strategy has 
been affected by the delays in 
land transfers. 

Agreements to conclude the 
restructure process have been 
nalized from the side of KCT. 

The nalization of the 
consolidation of the land 
and buildings are subject 
to approval by the 
Group's nanciers as well 

It is also unknown the 
period it will take to 
resolve the issue of the 
land invasions as it is also 
dependent on the lifting 
of lockdown regulations 
by Government. 

01/07/19- 
Ongoing

6. To raise additional funds to achieve the above and to pay off outstanding loan amounts as efciently as possible.
KCT Group to be self-sustainable 

Performance
Indicators

Target
Performance

Actual
Performance

Reason for variance and
remedial action Revised Target

Budget
Dates

2019/20

Performance report approved by the Board of Trustees on 

Chairperson: Khayelitsha Community Trust 

 11 November 2020
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The Board of Trustees operates in terms of a 
formal written charter and comprises a 
balance of leadership with nonexecutive 
trustees, who are appointed by the Board 
through a formal process. The Chief 
Executive Ofcer and the Chief. Financial 
Ofcer are attendees at board meetings. 
The Trust and its trustees are committed to 
complying with the principles of openness, 
integrity including accountability as 
advocated  in  the  K ing  Repor t  on 
Governance for South Africa.”
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Board of Trustees
The Board of Trustees operates in terms of a formal written 
charter and comprises a balance of leadership with non-
executive trustees, who are appointed by the Board 
through a formal process. The Chief Executive Of�cer and 
the Chief Financial Of�cer are attendees at board 
meetings. The Trust and its trustees are committed to 
complying with the principles of openness, integrity and 
accountability as advocated in the King Report on 
Governance for South Africa. The following committees 
assist the Board in discharging its collective responsibility 
for corporate governance:

Audit and Risk Committee 
The Audit and Risk Management Committee provides a 
forum for discussing business risk and control  issues. It 
also monitors the work of external and internal auditors 
and reviews the annual �nancial statements. Offers 
recommendations to the Board for consideration.

Finance Committee 
The Finance Committee ensures the competence and 
integrity of the Khayelitsha Community Trust Group’s 
�nancial management processes.

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee 
The Human Resource and Remuneration Committee 
assists the Board in ful�lling its obligations regarding 

human resources, including performance and 
succession  matters.

Marketing and PR Committee 
The Marketing and Public Relations Committee develops 
strategies that encourage the target audience’s 
involvement and generates interest and awareness in the 
organisation’s mission and projects.

Procurement and Bidding Committee
The Procurement and Bidding Committee reviews the 
Trust’s procurement policies and practices to ensure that 
these are in line with current best practice. It also ensures 
that all procurement processes are conducted in a fair 
and ethical manner, and comply with the Trust’s 
Procurement Policy. This guarantees that the Trust and 
investment companies’ empowerment policies are 
vigorously implemented when procuring goods and 
services.

Development Committee 
The Development Committee assists the Board in carrying 
out its due diligence function relating to development 
plans. It creates an enabling environment, provides a 
supporting role, facilitates implementation through 
strategic direction and develops supporting operation 
systems.

GOVERNANCE AND INSTITUTIONAL
ARRANGEMENTS

 Corporate Governance

KCT is constituted as follows:

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Burton Van Staaden

Bcom (Accounting) 
BCopt ( Honours) & C.T.A
Post Graduate Certicate in Auditing 
Appointed: 2019

Resigned December 2019
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Ms Bulelwa Belu-Toni

Mr Mandla Maxongo

Mr Anthony Coombe

Mr Ndithini Tyhido

Ms Pholisa Makeleni

Ms Funeka Mpetha

Mr Sebastian Jozi

Mr Zamikhaya Mbalo

Mr Richard Dyantyi

Mr Burton Van Staaden

ATTENDANCE OF BOARD AND 
SUB-COMMITTEE MEETINGS

FOR THE PERIOD OF  JULY 2019 – JUNE 2020

Details of the Board of Trustees 

Board Member Capacity Position Race & Gender 

Non-executive 

Non-executive 

Non-executive 

Non-executive 

Non-executive 

Non-executive

Non-executive 

Non-executive 

Non-executive 

Non-executive 

Black Female

Black Male

White Male

Black Male

Black Female

Black Female

Black Male

Black Male

Black Male

Coloured Male

Chairperson

Deputy Chairperson

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Mr Anthony Coombe retired from the KCT Board in December 2019
Mr Burton van Staaden was appointed to the KCT Board in December 2019

Ms Bulelwa Belu-Toni

Mr Mandla Maxongo

Mr Anthony Coombe

Mr Ndithini Tyhido

Mr Sebastian Jozi

Ms Pholisa Makeleni

Ms Funeka Mpetha

Mr Zamikhaya Mbalo

Mr Richard Dyantyi

Board Meetings For The 2019/2020 Financial Year 

Board Member Position Attendance Total Number Of Meetings 

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

Chairperson

Deputy Chairperson

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

3

2

2

3

3

3

3

3

3

Ms Bulelwa Belu-Toni

Mr Mandla Maxongo

Mr Ndithini Tyhido

Mr Sebastian Jozi

Ms Pholisa Makeleni

Ms Funeka Mpetha

Mr Zamikhaya Mbalo

Mr Richard Dyantyi

Mr Burton Van Staaden

Annual General Meeting For The 2019/2020 Financial Year 

Board Member Posittion

Chairperson

Deputy Chairperson

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

1

1

1

1

1

1

0

0

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

Attendance Total Number Of Meetings 

Ms Bulelwa Belu-Toni

Mr Mandla Maxongo

Mr Anthony Coombe

Mr Ndithini Tyhido

Ms Pholisa Makeleni

Ms Funeka Mpetha

Mr Sebastian Jozi

Mr Zamikhaya Mbalo

Mr Richard Dyantyi

Mr Burton Van Staaden

ATTENDANCE OF BOARD AND 
SUB-COMMITTEE MEETINGS

FOR THE PERIOD OF  JULY 2019 – JUNE 2020

Board Member Capacity Position

Non-executive 

Non-executive 

Non-executive 

Non-executive 

Non-executive 

Non-executive

Non-executive 

Non-executive 

Non-executive 

Non-executive 

Black Female

Black Male

White Male

Black Male

Black Female

Black Female

Black Male

Black Male

Black Male

Coloured Male

Chairperson

Deputy Chairperson

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Mr Anthony Coombe retired from the KCT Board in December 2019
Mr Burton van Staaden was appointed to the KCT Board in December 2019

Ms Bulelwa Belu-Toni

Mr Mandla Maxongo

Mr Anthony Coombe

Mr Ndithini Tyhido

Mr Sebastian Jozi

Ms Pholisa Makeleni

Ms Funeka Mpetha

Mr Zamikhaya Mbalo

Mr Richard Dyantyi

Board Member Position Attendance Total Number Of Meetings 

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

Chairperson

Deputy Chairperson

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

3

2

2

3

3

3

3

3

3

Ms Bulelwa Belu-Toni

Mr Mandla Maxongo

Mr Ndithini Tyhido

Mr Sebastian Jozi

Ms Pholisa Makeleni

Ms Funeka Mpetha

Mr Zamikhaya Mbalo

Mr Richard Dyantyi

Mr Burton Van Staaden

Board Member Posittion

Chairperson

Deputy Chairperson

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

1

1

1

1

1

1

0

0

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

Attendance Total Number Of Meetings 

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT TEAM
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Ms Bulelwa Belu-Toni

Mr Mandla Maxongo

Mr Anthony Coombe

Mr Ndithini Tyhido

Mr Sebastian Jozi

Ms Pholisa Makeleni

Ms Funeka Mpetha

Mr Zamikhaya Mbalo

Mr Richard Dyantyi

Mr Burton Van Staaden

Special Board Meetings For The 2019/2020 Financial Year 
Board Member Position

5

5

2**

5

5

5

5

5

5

4

5

5

2**

4

5

5

5

4

3

4

Mr Anthony Coombe retired from the KCT Board in December 2019
Mr Burton van Staaden was appointed to the KCT Board in December 2019

Ms Bulelwa Belu-Toni

Mr Mandla Maxongo

Mr Ndithini Tyhido

Mr Sebastian Jozi

Ms Pholisa Makeleni

Ms Funeka Mpetha

Mr Zamikhaya Mbalo

Mr Richard Dyantyi

Mr Burton Van Staaden

Trustees Annual Strategic Planning Session For The 2019/2020 Financial Year 
Board Member Position Attendance Total Number Of Meetings 

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

Chairperson

Deputy Chairperson

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

Ms Bulelwa Belu-Toni

Mr Mandla Maxongo

Mr Anthony Coombe

Mr Ndithini Tyhido

Mr Sebastian Jozi

Ms Pholisa Makeleni

Ms Funeka Mpetha

Mr Zamikhaya Mbalo

Mr Richard Dyantyi

Community Stakeholder Engagement Plenary For The 2019/2020 Financial Year 
Board Member Posittion

Chairperson

Deputy Chairperson

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

1

1

0

0

0

0

1

1

0

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

Attendance Total Number Of Meetings 

Position

Chairperson

Deputy Chairperson

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member

Member 

Note: Lockdown level 5 had an impact on the sitting of planned Board sub-committee
meetings. Board sub- committee meetings resumed under level 4. 

Ms Bulelwa Belu-Toni

Mr Mandla Maxongo

Ms Pholisa Makeleni

Human Resources And Remuneration Committee Meetings For The 2019/2020
Financial Year
Board Member 

2

2

2

2

2

2 

Position

Chairperson

Member 

Member 

Attendance Total Number Of Meetings 

Mr Anthony Coombe

Mr Burton Van Staaden

Mr Ndithini Tyhido

Mr Sebastian Jozi

Mr Zamikhaya Mbalo

Audit & Risk Committee Meetings For The 2019/2020 Financial Year 
Board Member Attendance Total Number Of Meetings 

2

3

3

3

3

Chairperson (Outgoing)

Chairperson (Incoming)

Member 

Member 

Member 

2

3

3

3

2

Position

Mr Anthony Coombe retired from the KCT Audit & Risk Committee in December 2019
Mr Burton van Staaden was appointed to the KCT Audit & Risk Committee in December 2019

Ms Pholisa Makeleni

Mr Sebastian Jozi

Mr Anthony Coombe

Ms Funeka Mpetha

Mr Burton Van Staaden

Finance Committtee Meeting For The 2019/2020 Financial Year 
Board Member Position Attendance Total Number Of Meetings 

Chairperson

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

2

2

1

2

1

2

2

1

2

1

Mr Anthony Coombe retired from the KCT Finance Committee in December 2019
Mr Burton van Staaden was appointed to the KCT Finance Committee in December 2019

Developments Committee Meeting For The 2019/2020 Financial Year

Mr Mandla Maxongo

Mrs Bulelwa Belu-Toni 

Mr Ndithini Tyhido

Mr Richard Dyantyi

Ms Pholisa Makeleni

Mr Anthony Coombe

Board Member 

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

0

1

1

Position

Chairperson

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Attendance 

46 47

Total Number Of Meetings 

Total Number Of Meetings 



AD HOC MEETINGS

TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES AND BENEFICIARIES OF THE 
KHAYELITSHA COMMUNITY TRUST (KCT)

We are pleased to present our report on the KCT Group 
for the nancial year ended 30 June 2020. 

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE MEMBERS AND ATTENDANCE
The names of  Committee members and thei r 
attendance at Committee meetings during the nancial 
year ended 30 June 2020 are set out below.

The risk register has been used by the Internal Auditors to 
prepare their audit coverage plan and to undertake audit 
work in the higher risk areas identied.
   
QUALITY OF MANAGEMENT REPORTS
The Committee is of the view that the content and quality 
of monthly management reports presented by 
Management to the Board of Trustees were generally 
adequate to reect reliably and accurately the results of 
the Trust in comparison with business plans and budgets. 

REVIEW AND EVALUATION OF THE GROUP ANNUAL 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Committee has

CONCLUSION
The Audit and Risk Committee has considered and 
concurs with the conclusions of the External Auditors on 
the group annual nancial statements for the year ended 
30 June 2020 and recommends them to the Board of 
Trustees for adoption. 

B Van Staaden
Chairperson
Audit and Risk Committee

11 November 2020

AC Coombe retired from  KCT  Board in December 2019
B Van Staaden appointed to KCT Board in December 2019

The Chief Executive Ofcer and Chief Financial Ofcer as 
well as representatives of the Internal and External 
Auditors are standing attendees at each meeting of the 
Audit and Risk Committee, which has direct access to 
these attendees in the fulllment of its responsibilities.

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITY
The Committee reports that it has complied with its 
responsibilities arising from its terms of reference, as 
approved by the Board of Trustees. 

EFFICIENCY AND EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL
The systems of internal control are designed to provide 
cost effective assurance that assets are safeguarded 
and that liabilities and working capital are efciently 
managed. Based on our review and evaluation of the 
audit work of the outsourced Internal Auditors and of the 
independent External Auditors, as reported to us for the 
year under review, the Committee is of the opinion that 
the systems of internal control were generally adequate 
but needing some improvements, in the areas of control 
of rental revenue from the Mall tenants, nancial & risk 
management and in the human resource, property 
management and information technology areas in 
order to ensure more effective and efcient operations. 
Such internal control weaknesses as were identied and 
reported to us have been or will be rectied by 
Management. 
The Committee undertakes to monitor corrective action 
to ensure that internal checking and control measures 
continue to be implemented, so as to continuously 
improve the internal control environment.

Mr B van Staaden (Chairperson)        

Mr AC Coombe (former Chairperson)

Mr S Jozi                                            

Mr Z Mbalo                                          

Mr N Tyhido                                         

Name of Member
Number of
meetings attended

3 out of 3**

2 out of 2 *

3 out of 3

2 out of 3

3 out of 3                                        

Reviewed and discussed with the External Auditors 
the audited group annual nancial statements and 
their report thereon for the year ended 30 June 2020 
included in the integrated report of the KCT Group;

Reviewed the performance report for the year 
ended 30 June 2020 included in the integrated report 
of the KCT Group;

Reviewed management responses to the nal 
management letter issued by the External Auditors;

Reviewed the appropriateness of the  accounting 
policies and practices applied by the KCT Group; 
and 

Reviewed adjustments resulting from the annual 
audit.

REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Th e  ye a r  u n d e r  rev i ew  h a s  b e e n 
characterised by different challenges that 
fo rced the board to  re�ect  on i t s 
commitment and resolved that “the KCT 
cont inues to be committed to the 
upliftment of Khayelitsha and its people”. 
Various strategies have been used to 
ensure that the Board together with the 
Executive Management achieve the set 
object ives  in  order  to  rea l i se  th i s 
commitment. 

CONSOLIDATED
ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

04
CHAPTER
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General Information Index
Country of incorporation and domicile South Africa

Type of trust To manage and undertake development of the Khayelitsha 
Business District

Trustees B Belu-Toni (Chair)
M Maxongo (Deputy Chair)

N L Tyhido
P Makeleni
F Mpetha
S Jozi
Z A Mbalo
R Dyantyi

Registered office Mazars House
Rialto Road
Grand Moorings Precinct
Century City
7441

Business address Office 3
Ground Floor, Old Dutch Square
Belville
7530

Bankers ABSA Bank Limited
FirstRand Bank Limited

Registered auditor Mazars
Registered Auditor

Trust registration number T3011/2003

Level of assurance These consolidated and separate annual financial statements
have been audited in compliance with the applicable
requirements of the Trust Deed.

Preparer The consolidated and separate annual financial statements
were independently compiled by:
Gerard Lategan
Associate General Accountant (SA)

Issued 14 January 2021

B van Staaden (Appointed Thursday, 12 December 2019)          

50 51

Trustees' Responsibilities and Approval

Independent Auditor's Report

Trustees' Report

Statement of Financial Position
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Statement of Cash Flows

Accounting Policies

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

The following supplementary information does not form part of the annual �nancial statements and is unaudited:

Detailed Income Statement

The reports and statements set out below comprise the annual �nancial statements presented to the trustees:
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Trustee Trustee
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The trustees are required to maintain adequate accounting records and are responsible for the content and integrity 
of the annual �nancial statements and related �nancial information included in this report. It is their responsibility to 
ensure that the annual �nancial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the group as at the end of the �nancial 
year and the results of its operations and cash �ows for the period then ended, in conformity with the International 
Financial Reporting Standards for Small and Medium-sized Entities.

The annual �nancial statements are prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards for 
Small and Medium-sized Entities and are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and 
supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates.

The trustees acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal �nancial control established by 
the group and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the trustees to 
meet these responsibilities, the trustees sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a 
cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly de�ned 
framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. 
These controls are monitored throughout the group and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical 
standards in ensuring the group’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above 
reproach. The focus of risk management in the group is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known 
forms of risk across the group. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the group endeavours to minimise it by 
ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within 
predetermined procedures and constraints.

The trustees are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of 
internal control provides reasonable assurance that the �nancial records may be relied on for the preparation of the 
annual �nancial statements. However, any system of internal �nancial control can provide only reasonable, and not 
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The trustees have reviewed the group’s cash �ow forecast for the year to 30 June 2021 and, in the light of this review and 
the current �nancial position, they are satis�ed that the group has or has access to adequate resources to continue in 
operational existence for the foreseeable future.  

The external auditors are responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the group's annual �nancial 
statements. The annual �nancial statements have been examined by the group's external auditors and their report is 
presented on pages 53 to 55

The annual �nancial statements set out on pages 56 to 84, which have been prepared on the going concern basis,
were approved by the trustees on 14 January 2021 and were signed on its behalf by:

To the trustees of Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries

Opinion

We have audited the annual �nancial statements of Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries (the trust) set out 
on pages 58 to 84, which comprise the statement of �nancial position as at 30 June 2020, and the statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash �ows for the year then ended, and 
notes to the annual �nancial statements, including a summary of signi�cant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, the annual �nancial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the �nancial position of 
Khayelitsha Community Trust and its  Subsidiaries as at 30 June 2020, and its �nancial performance and cash �ows for 
the year then ended in accordance  with International Financial Reporting Standards for Small and Medium-Sized 
Entities and the requirements of the trust deed. 

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section 
of our  report. We are independent of the trust in accordance with the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors’ 
Code of  Professional Conduct for Registered Auditors (IRBA Code) and other independence requirements applicable 
to performing audits of �nancial statements in South Africa. We have ful�lled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance  with the IRBA Code and in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits 
in South Africa. The IRBA Code is consistent with the corresponding sections of the International Ethics Standards Board 
for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence 
Standards). We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suf�cient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion.

Emphasis of matter - impact of the outbreak of COVID-19 on the �nancial statements 

In forming our opinion on the consolidated and separate annual �nancial statements, which is not modi�ed, we draw 
your attention to the trustees' view on the impact of the COVID-19 as disclosed in notes 6 and 7 in the Trustees' Report, 
and the consideration in the going concern and events after the reporting period in note 29 to the annual �nancial 
statements. 

Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020
Trustees' Responsibilities and Approval

Independent Auditor's Report

www.mazars.co.za

Mazars House
Rialto Road
Grand Moorings Precinct
Century City
7441
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Century City
7446

Docex 9 Century City

Tel: +27 21 818 5000
Fax: +27 21 818 5001
Email: cpt@mazars.co.za

Registered Auditor – A �rm of Chartered Accountants (SA) • IRBA Registration Number 900222 
Partners: MC Olckers (National Co-CEO), MV Ninan (National Co-CEO), JM Barnard, AK Batt, FJ Cronje, AS De Jager, DS Dollman, M Edelberg, Y Ferreira, T 
Gangen, R Groenewald, AK Hoosain, MY Ismail, N Jansen, J Marais, B Mbunge, FN Miller, G Molyneux, S Naidoo, MG Odendaal, W Olivier, D Resnick, BG 
Sacks, MA Salee, N Silbowitz, SM Solomon, HH Swanepoel, MJA Teuchert, N Thelander, JC Van Tubbergh, EC Van Heerden, N Volschenk, J Watkins-Baker 
A full list of national partners is available on request or at www.mazars.co.za 
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Mazars
Partner: S Naidoo
Registered Auditor
14 January 2021
Cape Town
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Since the date of the statement of �nancial position, the trust has assessed the impact of COVID-19 on the annual 
�nancial statements and considered the potential impact on the business. While it is envisaged that there will be  a 
negative impact on the performance of the trust over the remainder of the �nancial year, the full impact of COVID-19  
cannot be reasonably estimated at this time. Management will continue to assess the �nancial impact of COVID-19 
and its impact on the trust's �nancial position.

Other information

The trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the 
document titled "Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries annual �nancial statements for the year ended 30 
June 2020", which includes the Trustees' Report as required by the Trust deed and the Detailed Income Statement, 
which we obtained prior to the date of this report. The other information does not include the annual �nancial 
statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the annual �nancial statements does not cover the other 
information and we do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with 
our audit of the annual �nancial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the annual �nancial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the 
other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of the trustees for the Annual Financial Statements 

The trustees are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the annual �nancial statements in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards for Small and Medium-Sized Entities and the requirements of the Trust 
deed, andfor such internal control as the trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of annual �nancial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the annual �nancial 
statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the trustees 
either intend to liquidate the group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Annual Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the annual �nancial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to in�uence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these annual �nancial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and 
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.  We also: 

Ÿ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the annual �nancial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is suf�cient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud 
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

Ÿ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
group’s internal control. 

Registered Auditor – A �rm of Chartered Accountants (SA) • IRBA Registration Number 900222 
Partners: MC Olckers (National Co-CEO), MV Ninan (National Co-CEO), JM Barnard, AK Batt, FJ Cronje, AS De Jager, DS Dollman, M Edelberg, Y Ferreira, T 
Gangen, R Groenewald, AK Hoosain, MY Ismail, N Jansen, J Marais, B Mbunge, FN Miller, G Molyneux, S Naidoo, MG Odendaal, W Olivier, D Resnick, BG 
Sacks, MA Salee, N Silbowitz, SM Solomon, HH Swanepoel, MJA Teuchert, N Thelander, JC Van Tubbergh, EC Van Heerden, N Volschenk, J Watkins-Baker 
A full list of national partners is available on request or at www.mazars.co.za 

Ÿ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by the trustees. 

Ÿ Conclude on the appropriateness of the trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
signi�cant doubt on the group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the annual �nancial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the group 
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Ÿ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the annual �nancial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the annual �nancial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation.  

We communicate with the trustees regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
signi�cant audit �ndings, including any signi�cant de�ciencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Registered Auditor – A �rm of Chartered Accountants (SA) • IRBA Registration Number 900222 
Partners: MC Olckers (National Co-CEO), MV Ninan (National Co-CEO), JM Barnard, AK Batt, FJ Cronje, AS De Jager, DS Dollman, M Edelberg, Y Ferreira, T 
Gangen, R Groenewald, AK Hoosain, MY Ismail, N Jansen, J Marais, B Mbunge, FN Miller, G Molyneux, S Naidoo, MG Odendaal, W Olivier, D Resnick, BG 
Sacks, MA Salee, N Silbowitz, SM Solomon, HH Swanepoel, MJA Teuchert, N Thelander, JC Van Tubbergh, EC Van Heerden, N Volschenk, J Watkins-Baker 
A full list of national partners is available on request or at www.mazars.co.za 
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The trustees believe that the group has adequate �nancial resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable 
future and accordingly the consolidated annual �nancial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. 
The trustees have satis�ed themselves that the group is in a sound �nancial position and that it has access to suf�cient 
borrowing facilities to meet its foreseeable cash requirements. The trustees are not aware of any new material changes 
that may adversely impact the group. The trustees are also not aware of any material noncompliance with statutory or 
regulatory requirements or of any pending changes to legislation which may affect the group. 

The consolidated and separate annual �nancial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting 
policies applicable to a going concern. This basis presumes that funds will be available to �nance future 
operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments
will occur in the ordinary course of business. 

The ability of the trust to continue as a going concern is supported by the following factors:
Ÿ KBD Retail Properties Proprietary Limited is continuing to generate positive operating cash �ows for the Khayelitsha 

Retail Centre valued at R 249,680,000 (2019: R 295,080,000) at year end.

Ÿ KBD Retail Properties Proprietary Limited re�nanced its loans held with FirstRand Bank in the prior year which resulted 
in the interest rate being lowered, settlement of old loans, reduced repayments under the new loan structure as well 
as part settlement of an intercompany loan thereby improving liquidity of the group.

8. Auditors
Mazars continued in of�ce as auditors for the trust and its subsidiaries for 2021.

6. Events after the reporting period 

Within the context of the current epidemic (COVID-19), the global picture remains uncertain and is evolving rapidly. At 
this stage, it is dif�cult to measure the consequences in 2020 on business activity. Management has considered the 
current cash position and forecasts and based on this assessment, the trust will be able to service its obligations for the 
foreseeable future. 

There has been a rapid land invasion in Khayelitsha and surrounding communities, where the Khayelitsha CBD land 
earmarked for housing development has been affected. A spoliation order and interdict was granted by the High 
Court to KCT and the Sheriff of the Court has been consulted to act on this interdict. The land invasions may impact 
negatively the prospects of the planned housing development and therefore impact the going concern of KBD 
Housing Proprietary Limited should the planned projects be cancelled due to the invasions. 

The trustees are not aware of any other material event which occurred after the reporting date and up to the date of 
this report.
 

7. Going concern 

Name of subsidiary Net income/
(loss)

Other comprehensive income - 
gains on property valuation

Total comprehensive
income/(loss)

KBD Management Proprietary Limited 144,410 - 144,410

KBD Housing Proprietary Limited (612,622) - (612,622)

KBD Retail Properties Proprietary Limited 3,781,196 (34,576,021) (30,794,825)

3,312,984 (34,576,021) (31.263.037)

3. Trustees
 
The trustees in of�ce at the date of this report are as follows: 

Trustees  
B Belu-Toni (Chair) 
M Maxongo (Deputy Chair) 
A C Coombe                                      Retired Thursday, 12 December 2019 
N L Tyhido 
P Makeleni 
F Mpetha 
S Jozi Z 
A Mbalo 
R Dyantyi 
B van Staaden                                    Appointed Thursday, 12 December 2019 

Changes

5. Special resolutions 

Special resolutions were passed by the applicable shareholders of certain subsidiaries of the group in the current year 
in terms of section 45 of the Companies Act of South Africa, granting certain subsidiaries in the group the authority to 
provide �nancial assistance to other group companies.

4. Interests in subsidiaries 

The trustees have pleasure in submitting their report on the annual �nancial statements of Khayelitsha Community Trust 
and its Subsidiaries and the group for the year ended 30 June 2020. 

1. Nature of business  
The group is engaged to manage and undertake development of the Khayelitsha Business District. The group adopted 
International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities for the �rst time during the year 
under review, refer to note 28 to the annual �nancial statements. There have been no material changes to the nature 
of the group's business from the prior year. 

2. Review of �nancial results and activities 
The consolidated annual �nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial  Reporting 
Standards for Small and Medium-sized Entities, the requirements of the Trust Deed and Financial Reporting 
Pronouncements as Issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council. The accounting policies have been applied  
consistently compared to the prior year, except for the changes set out in note 28 First-time adoption of International 
Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities. 

Full details of the �nancial position, results of operations and cash �ows of the group are set out in these consolidated 
annual �nancial statements and do not, in our opinion require further explanation. 

Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020
Trustees' Report
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Group Trust

Figures in Rand Notes 2020 2019 2020 2019

Revenue 15 50,404,866 51,298,237 140,318 140,318

Other income 16 494,871 2,009,209 2,229,551 3,662,167

Operating expenses (34,712,297) (30,493,367) (12,053,541) (8,481,386)

Operating surplus (deficit) 17 16,187,440 22,814,079 (9,683,672) (4,678,901)

Investment revenue 18 866,198 176,484 396,468 18,876

Fair value adjustments 19 (44,459,324) 25,678,053 - 120,000

Finance costs 20 (7,369,878) (5,505,815) (110,467) (102,577)

(Deficit) surplus before taxation (34,775,564) 43,162,801 (9,397,671) (4,642,602)

Taxation 21 (5,406,970) (6,872,277) - -

(Deficit) surplus for the year (40,182,534) 36,290,524 (9,397,671) (4,642,602)

Other comprehensive income - - - -

Total comprehensive (loss) income
for the year

(40,182,534) 36,290,524 (9,397,671) (4,642,602)

Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020
Statement of Comprehensive Income

Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020
Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2020

Group Trust

Figures in Rand Notes 2020 2019 2020 2019

Assets

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 2 256,447 79,023 73,457 79,023

Investment property at fair value 3 315,612,062 358,739,096 69,120,000 69,120,000

Investments in subsidiary 4 - - 100 100

Contingent rental receivable 5 - - 5,285,545 11,053,874

Other financial assets 6 1,551,527 1,000,575 - -

Operating lease asset 7 3,994,877 5,867,938 248,218 305,163

321,414,913 365,686,632 74,727,320 80,558,160

Current Assets

Trade and other receivables 8 7,215,476 3,181,451 6,202,030 6,344,057

Operating lease asset 7 1,873,061 2,262,965 56,944 49,054

Cash and cash equivalents 9 18,471,052 25,276,763 4,420,414 4,405,618

27,559,589 30,721,179 10,679,388 10,798,729

Total Assets 348,974,502 396,407,811 85,406,708 91,356,889

Equity and Liabilities

Equity

Trust capital 100 100 100 100

Accumulated surplus 274,467,346 314,649,880 75,457,233 84,854,904

274,467,446 314,649,980 75,457,333 84,855,004

Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities

Borrowings 11 48,277,428 59,649,373 829,327 829,327

Deferred tax 12 1,429,597 1,992,878 - -

49,707,025 61,642,251 829,327 829,327

Current Liabilities

Loans from group companies 13 - - 8,022,680 4,547,764

Trade and other payables 14 5,585,380 6,314,704 747,673 885,566

Borrowings 11 12,065,358 10,035,427 189,372 78,905

Current tax payable 7,149,293 3,763,503 160,323 160,323

Bank overdraft 9 - 1,946 - -

24,800,031 20,115,580 9,120,048 5,672,558

Total Liabilities 74,507,056 81,757,831 9,949,375 6,501,885

Total Equity and Liabilities 348,974,502 396,407,811 85,406,708 91,356,889
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Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020
Statement of Cash Flows

Group Trust

Figures in Rand Notes 2020 2019 2020 2019

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash used in operations 22 13,760,586 21,768,666 (9,536,722) (5,807,367)

Interest income 866,198 176,484 396,468 18,876

Finance costs (6,698,279) (5,505,815) (110,467) (102,577)

Tax paid 23 (2,584,461) (6,934,347) - -

Net cash from operating activities 5,344,044 9,504,988 (9,250,721) (5,891,068)

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

2 (250,954) (54,861) (47,894) (54,861)

Additions to investment property at fair
value

3 (1,332,290) (33,761) - -

Advances of loans receivable at
amortised cost

(550,952) (817,125) - -

Net cash from investing activities (2,134,196) (905,747) (47,894) (54,861)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings - 31,897,341 - -

Repayment of borrowings (10,013,613) (20,721,675) - (78,905)

Proceeds from loans from group
companies and amount receivable

- - 10,814,607 10,323,709

Repayment of loans from group
companies and amount receivable

- - (1,501,196) (249,648)

Net cash from financing activities (10,013,613) 11,175,666 9,313,411 9,995,156

Total cash movement for the year (6,803,765) 19,774,907 14,796 4,049,227

Cash at the beginning of the year 25,274,817 5,499,910 4,405,618 356,391

Total cash at end of the year 9 18,471,052 25,274,817 4,420,414 4,405,618

Note 10

Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020
Statement of Changes in Equity

Figures in Rand
Trust capital Accumulated

surplus
Total equity

Group

Balance at 01 July 2018 100 278,359,356 278,359,456

Surplus for the year - 36,290,524 36,290,524
Other comprehensive income - - -

Total comprehensive income for the year - 36,290,524 36,290,524

Balance at 01 July 2019 100 314,649,880 314,649,980

Deficit for the year - (40,182,534) (40,182,534)
Other comprehensive income - - -

Total comprehensive deficit for the year - (40,182,534) (40,182,534)

Balance at 30 June 2020 100 274,467,346 274,467,446

Note 10

Trust

Balance at 01 July 2018 100 89,497,506 89,497,606

Deficit for the year - (4,642,602) (4,642,602)
Other comprehensive income - - -

Total comprehensive deficit for the year - (4,642,602) (4,642,602)

Balance at 01 July 2019 100 84,854,904 84,855,004

Deficit for the year - (9,397,671) (9,397,671)
Other comprehensive income - - -

Total comprehensive deficit for the year - (9,397,671) (9,397,671)

Balance at 30 June 2020 100 75,457,233 75,457,333
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Fair value of investment property

The fair value of investment property is derived from current market prices of comparable real estate. The fair value is 
based on a valuation made by an independent valuator who holds a recognised and relevant valuation licence and 
has recent experience in valuing property in the same location as the trust's investment property. The fair value of the 
investment property is disclosed in note 3

1.3 Investment property

Investment property is land and buildings held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. 

Investment property is initially measured at cost and subsequently at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in 
surplus or de�cit. If the fair value of investment property cannot be measured reliably without undue cost or effort, then it is 
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment. 

The cost of investment property comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs incurred to bring the 
asset to the condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an investment property and costs incurred subsequently to 
add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of investment 
property, the carrying amount of the replaced item is derecognised. 

The fair value is determined by an external valuator derived from current market prices of comparable real estate and 
from the use of the income capitalisation method. 

1.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets which the group holds for its own use or for rental to others and which 
are expected to be used for more than one period. 

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when it is probable that future economic bene�ts 
associated with the item will �ow to the group, and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Property, plant and 
equipment is initially measured at cost. 

Cost includes costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred 
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item 
of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. 

Expenditure incurred subsequently for major services, additions to, or replacements of, parts of property, plant and 
equipment are capitalised if it is probable that future economic bene�ts associated with the expenditure will �ow to the 
group and the cost can be measured reliably. Day to day servicing costs are included in surplus or de�cit in the period in 
which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated 
impairment losses, except for land which is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation of an 
asset commences when the asset is available for use as intended by management. 

Depreciation is charged to write off the asset's carrying amount over its estimated useful life to its estimated residual 
value, using a method that best re�ects the pattern in which the asset's economic bene�ts are consumed by the group. 

Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020
Accounting Policies

Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020
Accounting Policies

1. Basis of preparation and summary of signi�cant accounting policies

The annual �nancial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with the International 
Financial Reporting Standards for Small and Medium-sized Entities International Financial Reporting Standards for Small 
and Medium-sized Entities ("IFRS for SME's"). The annual �nancial statements have been prepared on the historical cost 
basis, and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below. They are presented in South African Rands. These 
accounting policies are consistent with the previous period, except for the changes set out in note 28 Firsttime adoption of 
the International Financial Reporting Standards for Small and Medium-sized Entities. 

1.1 Consolidation

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated annual �nancial statements incorporate the annual �nancial statements of the trust and all of its 
subsidiaries. Control exists when the trust has the power to govern the �nancial and operating policies of an entity so as to 
obtain bene�ts from its activities. The results of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated annual �nancial statements 
from the effective date of acquisition to the effective date of disposal. All intragroup transactions, balances, income and 
expenses are eliminated. Adjustments are made when necessary to the consolidated annual �nancial statements of 
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with those of the group. Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for 
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses, in the trust's separate annual �nancial statements. 

1.2 Signi�cant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty
 
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

Management did not make critical judgements in the application of accounting policies, apart from those involving 
estimations, which would signi�cantly affect the annual �nancial statements. 

Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

Impairment testing 

The group reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the 
carrying amount may not be recoverable. When such indicators exist, management determine the recoverable amount by 
performing value in use and fair value calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions. When 
it is not possible to determine the recoverable amount for an individual asset, management assesses the recoverable 
amount for the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

The group reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the 
carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets are grouped at the lowest level for which identi�able cash �ows are largely 
independent of the cash �ows of other assets and liabilities. If there are indications that impairment may have occurred, 
estimates are prepared of expected future cash �ows for each group of assets. Expected future cash �ows used to 
determine the value in use of tangible assets are inherently uncertain and could materially change over time.

Fair value estimation 

The fair value of �nancial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation techniques. 
The group uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at the end of 
each reporting period. Quoted market prices for similar instruments are used for long-term debt. Other techniques, such as 
estimated discounted cash �ows, are used to determine fair value for the remaining �nancial instruments. The carrying 
value less impairment provision of short-term trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents are assumed to 
approximate their fair values. The carrying value of short-term trade payables is assumed to approximate their fair value. The 
fair value of �nancial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash �ows at the 
current market interest rate that is available to the group for similar �nancial instruments. 
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1.6  Tax
Current tax assets and liabilities 

Current tax for current and prior periods is, to the extent unpaid, recognised as a liability. If the amount already paid in 
respect of current and prior periods exceeds the amount due for those periods, the excess is recognised as an asset. 

Current tax liabilities (assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to 
(recovered from) the tax authorities, using the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted 
by the reporting date. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities 

A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences. 

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable 
surplus will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. 

Deferred tax asset is recognised for the carry forward of unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future 
taxable surplus will be available against which the unused tax losses can be utilised. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is 
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by 
the end of the reporting period. 

Tax expenses

 Tax expense is recognised in the same component of total comprehensive income or equity as the transaction or other 
event that resulted in the tax expense. 

1.7 Leases 

A lease is classi�ed as a �nance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the 
lessee. All other leases are operating leases. 

Operating leases - lessor 

Operating lease income is recognised as an income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between 
the amounts recognised as income and the contractual receipts is recognised as an operating lease asset. This asset is 
not discounted.  

Contingent rentals are not accounted for on a straight-line basis, and are recognised as income when the amounts can 
be reliably measured. 

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging operating leases are added to the carrying amount of the 
leased asset and recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as the lease income. 

Operating leases – lessee 
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference 
between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease 
liability. This liability is not discounted

. Any contingent rents are expensed in the period they are incurred. 

Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020
Accounting Policies

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020
Accounting Policies

Depreciation method         Average useful life Item

Furniture and �xtures 
Motor vehicles
Of�ce equipment 
Computer equipment 

Straight line 
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line

6 years 
4 - 5 years
5 years
3 years

When indicators are present that the useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and equipment have 
changed since the most recent annual reporting date, they are reassessed. Any changes are accounted for 
prospectively as a change in accounting estimate. 

Impairment tests are performed on property, plant and equipment when there is an indicator that they may be impaired. 
When the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is assessed to be higher than the estimated 
recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or de�cit to bring the carrying amount in 
line with the recoverable amount. 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic bene�ts are 
expected from its continued use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant 
and equipment, determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the 
item, is included in surplus or de�cit when the item is derecognised.

1.5 Financial instruments
Initial measurement 

Financial instruments are initially measured at the transaction price (including transaction costs except in the initial 
measurement of �nancial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value through surplus or de�cit) unless the 
arrangement constitutes, in effect, a �nancing transaction in which case it is measured at the present value of the future 
payments discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument. 

Financial instruments at amortised cost 

These include loans, borrowings, trade receivables and trade payables. Those debt instruments which meet the criteria in 
section 11.8(b) of the standard, are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Debt 
instruments which are classi�ed as current assets or current liabilities are measured at the undiscounted amount of the 
cash expected to be received or paid, unless the arrangement effectively constitutes a �nancing transaction. 

At each reporting date, the carrying amounts of assets held in this category are reviewed to determine whether there is 
any objective evidence of impairment. If there is objective evidence, the recoverable amount is estimated and 
compared with the carrying amount. If the estimated recoverable amount is lower, the carrying amount is reduced to its 
estimated recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus o r de�cit. 

Financial instruments at cost 

Equity instruments that are not publicly traded and whose fair value cannot otherwise be measured reliably without 
undue cost or effort are measured at cost less impairment.
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Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2020 2019 2020 2019

2. Property, plant and equipment

Group 2020 2019

Cost or
revaluation

Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying
value

Cost or
revaluation

Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying
value

Furniture and fixtures 244,151 (203,265) 40,886 191,049 (184,552) 6,497
Motor vehicles 175,262 (18,402) 156,860 - - -

35,755 (31,626) 4,129 35,755 (30,007) 5,748
IT equipment 280,356 (225,784) 54,572 257,766 (190,988) 66,778

Total 735,524 (479,077) 256,447 484,570 (405,547) 79,023

Trust 2020 2019

Furniture and fixtures 195,331 (180,575) 14,756 170,027 (163,530) 6,497
35,755 (31,626) 4,129 35,755 (30,007) 5,748

IT equipment 280,356 (225,784) 54,572 257,766 (190,988) 66,778

Total 511,442 (437,985) 73,457 463,548 (384,525) 79,023

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Group - 2020

Opening
balance

Additions Depreciation Closing
balance

Furniture and fixtures 6,497 53,101 (18,712) 40,886
Motor vehicles - 175,263 (18,403) 156,860

5,748 - (1,619) 4,129
IT equipment 66,778 22,590 (34,796) 54,572

79,023 250,954 (73,530) 256,447

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Group - 2019

Furniture and fixtures 20,950 - - (14,453) 6,497
Ofice equipment 9,832 - - (4,084) 5,748
IT equipment 56,566 54,861 (3,819) (40,830) 66,778

87,348 54,861 (3,819) (59,367) 79,023

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Trust - 2020

Furniture and fixtures 6,497 25,304 (17,045) 14,756
5,748 - (1,619) 4,129

IT equipment 66,778 22,590 (34,796) 54,572

79,023 47,894 (53,460) 73,457

Group Trust

Office Equipment

Office Equipment

Office Equipment

Ofice equipment

Opening
balance

Additions Fair value
adjustments

Total

Opening
balance

Additions Disposals Depreciation Closing
balance

Cost or
revaluation

Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying
value

Cost or
revaluation

Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying
value

Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020
Accounting Policies

1.8  Impairment of assets 

The group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that property, plant and equipment may be 
impaired. 

If there is any such indication, the recoverable amount of any affected asset (or group of related assets) is estimated and 
compared with its carrying amount. If the estimated recoverable amount is lower, the carrying amount is reduced to its 
estimated recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or de�cit. 

If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or group of related assets) is increased to 
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but not in excess of the amount that would have been determined had 
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or group of assets) in prior years. A reversal of impairment is 
recognised immediately in surplus or de�cit

1.9  Trust capital and equity 

The founder has donated to the trustees the sum of R100 which donation the trustees have accepted in trust for the 
purposes and upon the terms and conditions of the trust deed. 

1.10  Employee bene�ts 
Short-term employee bene�ts 

The cost of short-term employee bene�ts, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as leave 
pay and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary bene�ts such as medical care), are recognised in the period in which 
the related service is rendered and are not discounted. 

1.11 Revenue 

Revenue is recognised to the extent that the group has transferred the signi�cant risks and rewards of ownership of 
goods to the buyer, or has rendered services under an agreement provided the amount of revenue can be measured 
reliably and it is probable that economic bene�ts associated with the transaction will �ow to the group. Revenue is 
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding sales taxes and discounts. 

The group recognises revenue from the letting of property. Revenue from rental income is accounted for under operating 
leases. Refer to 1.7 for the accounting policy. 

Revenue from operating costs recovered is recognised in accordance with the underlying rental agreement. 

Interest is recognised, in surplus or de�cit, using the effective interest rate method. 

1.12  Borrowing costs
 
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2020 2019 2020 2019

Group Trust

3. Investment property at fair value (continued)

Details of property

Erven 58857 and 58858 (portions of
Erf 18370), Khayelitsha

 - Purchase price: 20 August 2004 1,634,196 1,634,196 1,634,196 1,634,196
 - Revaluations since acquisition 67,485,804 67,485,804 67,485,804 67,485,804

69,120,000 69,120,000 69,120,000 69,120,000

Khayelitsha Retail Centre

 - Capitalised expenditure 92,992,906 91,660,616 - -
 - Revaluations since acquisition 150,819,156 195,288,480 - -

243,812,062 286,949,096 - -

Business Park

 - Purchase price: 1 July 2013 1,900,000 1,900,000 - -
 - Revaluations since acquisition 780,000 770,000 - -

2,680,000 2,670,000 - -

The business park consists of 9 units situated 
on Erf 75008, a portion of Erf 18730 in 
Khayelitsha, being land currently owned by 
the City of Cape Town. 

Consists of a retail centre that has been 
constructed by KBD Retail Properties 
Proprietary Limited on land leased indirectly 
from Khayelitsha Community Trust. Direct 
ownership of this retail centre will revert back to 
Khayelitsha Community Trust at the earlier of 
the expiration of the lease on 30 November 
2048, or the repayment of the borrowing 
referred to in note 13.

Registers with details of land and buildings are available for inspection by shareholders or their duly authorised 

representatives at the registered office of the trust

Consists of land, measuring approximately 
47,343 square metres in extent. A portion of the 
land has been leased indirectly to KBD Retail 
Properties Proprietary Limited. KBD Retail 
Properties Proprietary Limited constructed the 
Khayelitsha Retail Centre on the leased land.

Total

Fair value
adjustments

Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Group Trust

Figures in Rand 2020 2019 2020 2019

2. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Trust - 2019

Opening
balance

Additions Disposals Depreciation Closing
balance

Furniture and fixtures 20,950 - - (14,453) 6,497
Office equipment 9,832 - - (4,084) 5,748
IT equipment 56,566 54,861 (3,819) (40,830) 66,778

87,348 54,861 (3,819) (59,367) 79,023

3. Investment property at fair value

Reconciliation of investment property at fair value - Group - 2020

Opening
balance

Additions Fair value
adjustments

Total

Investment property 358,739,096 1,332,290 (44,459,324) 315,612,062

Reconciliation of investment property at fair value - Group - 2019

Investment property 333,027,282 33,761 25,678,053 358,739,096

Reconciliation of investment property at fair value - Trust - 2020

Opening
balance

Investment property 69,120,000 69,120,000

Reconciliation of investment property at fair value - Trust - 2019

Opening
balance

Investment property 69,000,000 120,000 69,120,000

Opening
balance

Additions Fair value
adjustments

Total

Total
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The normalised income is comprised of revenue less operating expenses adjusted for items such as management fees, 
straight-line rentals and non-recurring items. 

Changes in the inputs used in the fair value measurement of investment property would result in a signi�cant change of 
the fair value of investment property. 

Erven 58857 and 58858 (portion of Erf 18730, Khayelitsha) 

The fair value of the land has been determined by using comparable sales and changes in the inputs will not 
signi�cantly affect the value of the investment property. 

Khayelitsha Retail Centre 

If income and operating expenses were to increase/decrease by 5% with all other variables held constant, the value of 
the property would have been R 16,224,609 higher/lower. 

If income were to increase/decrease by 5% and operating expenses were to decrease/increase by 5% with all other 
variables held constant, the value of the property would have been R 37,848,497 higher/lower. 

If the capitalisation rate were to increase (decrease) by 1% with all other variables held constant, the value of the 
property would have been R 32,726,653 lower (R 41,172,241 higher). 

Business park

 If income and operating expenses were to increase/decrease by 5% with all other variables held constant, the value of 
the property would have been R 133,812 higher/lower. 

If income were to increase/decrease by 5% and operating expenses were to decrease/increase by 5% with all other 
variables held constant, the value of the property would have been R 189,948 higher/lower. 

If the capitalisation rate were to increase (decrease) by 1% with all other variables held constant, the value of the 
property would have been R 261,097 lower (R 218,469 higher). 

Investment properties were valued on a highest and best use basis. For all the group's investment properties the current 
use is considered to be the highest and best use. 

Reconciliation of the balance of investment property between fair value adjustments and income from operating lease 
assets:

Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

The effective date of the valuation was 30 June 2020. The valuation was performed by Colin Douglas of Douglas Property 
Valuations CC to the value of R249,680,000 (2019: R295,080,000). 

The assumptions used in the income capitalisation valuation were as follows: 
Ÿ Discount rate: 8.75% (2019: 7.75%)
Ÿ  The contractual income is considered to be sustainable in the medium term.
Ÿ  The July 2020 contractual �gures have been used in the valuation. 
Ÿ Expenses which do not represent market value have been normalised. 
Ÿ Gross annual income - R 47,313,968 (2019: R 46,864,118) 
Ÿ Estimated annual expenditure - R 18,920,902 (2019: R 18,146,111) 

The property could be placed in the open market and a prospective purchaser would not be bound by any head lease, 
and would therefore obtain all bene�ts and liabilities relating to the leasing of �oor space at the property. This assumes 
that the sale transaction would be at arms length without special conditions. The existing head lease between KBD Retail 
Properties Proprietary Limited and KBD Management Proprietary Limited was ignored. 

The servitude over the land which allows the public to make use of a walkthrough has been assumed not to be 
detrimental to the value of the property. 

These assumptions are based on current market conditions. 

Business park 

The effective date of the valuation was 30 June 2020. The valuation was performed by and independent valuer, Colin 
Douglas of Douglas Property Valuations CC. 

The value was determined using the capitalised earnings method, with a capitalisation factor of 11.25% (2019: 11%). 
At year end, the trustees believe that these valuations fairly re�ect the value of the three investment properties

Fair values for investment properties are calculated using the direct income capitalisation and comparable sales 
methods. In applying the direct income capitalisation method the normalised income of the properties is divided by an 
appropriate capitalisation rate. The comparable sales method compares the average cost per square metre of similar 
properties to the subject property. 

The capitalisation rate is based on actual location, size and quality of the property and takes into account any available 
market data at the valuation date.

3. Investment property at fair value (continued) 

Details of valuation 
Erven 58857 and 58858, Khayelitsha 

The effective date of the valuation was 30 June 2020. The valuation was performed by Colin Douglas, (Douglas Property 
Valuations CC) who is not connected to the group and has recent experience in the location and category of the 
property being valued. Colin Douglas is quali�ed by means of a national diploma in property valuation, B.Comm (Unisa) 
and being a member of the SA Council of Valuers. 

The valuation was based on open market value for existing use, and valued at R69,120,000 (2019: R69,120,000). 

Khayelitsha Retail Centre 
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Figures in Rand 2020 2019 2020 2019

Group Trust

8. Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables 6,856,170 1,341,560 6,000,000 6,000,000
Loss allowance (1,326,866) (400,000) - -
Prepayments 292,811 344,799 - 59,544
Deposits 50,739 226,178 48,639 48,639
VAT 21,572 169,159 - -
City of Cape Town for water and
sewerage overcharges 

153,391 - 153,391 235,874

Other receivable 1,167,659 1,499,755 - -

7,215,476 3,181,451 6,202,030 6,344,057

Trade and other receivables pledged as security

Trade and other receivables were pledged as security for overdraft facilities of R - (2019: R 1,946) of the group. At
year end the overdraft amounted to R - (2019: R 1,946).

9. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand 1,956 2,996 1,956 2,996
Bank balances 18,469,096 25,273,767 4,418,458 4,402,622
Bank overdraft - (1,946) - -

18,471,052 25,274,817 4,420,414 4,405,618

Current assets 18,471,052 25,276,763 4,420,414 4,405,618
Current liabilities - (1,946) - -

18,471,052 25,274,817 4,420,414 4,405,618

Cash and cash equivalents held by KBD Retail Proprietary Limited amount to R 13,999,991 (2019: R 20,809,988)
have been ceded in favour of FirstRand Bank Limited as security f or borrowing facilities granted to KBD Retail
Properties Proprietary Limited.

10. Retained income

Balance resulting from investment
property valuations

263,544,285 237,866,232 67,485,804 67,365,804

Balance resulting from operating profit 51,105,595 40,493,140 17,369,100 22,131,702

Opening balance 314,649,880 278,359,372 84,854,904 89,497,506

(Decrease) / Increase during the year
due to investment property valuation

(44,459,324) 25,678,053 - 120,000

Increase/(decrease) during the year due
to operating profit

4,324,615 10,612,455 (9,397,671) (4,762,602)

Closing balance resulting from
investment property valuations

219,084,961 263,544,285 67,485,804 67,485,804

Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Group Trust

Figures in Rand 2020 2019 2020 2019

3. Investment property at fair value (continued)

Purchase price of investment property 96,527,102 95,194,812 1,634,196 1,634,196
Fair value adjustment on investment
property

219,084,960 263,544,284 67,485,804 67,485,804

Operating lease asset - note 7 5,867,938 8,130,903 - -

321,480,000 366,869,999 69,120,000 69,120,000

4. Investment in subsidiary

Name of subsidiary %
holding

2020

%
holding

2019

Carrying
amount 2020

Carrying
amount 2019

KBD Management Proprietary
Limited

%100.00 %100.00 100 100

5. Contingent rental receivable

KBD Management Proprietary Limited - - 5,285,545 11,053,874

The receivable is interest free, unsecured and repayable on dem and. The receivable has been subordinated by
Khayelitsh Community Trust in favour of other creditors until such time as the company's assets, fairly v alued,
exceed its liabilities.

6. Other financial assets

At amortised cost
Liquidity reserve 1,551,527 1,000,575 - -

The Liquidity Reserve Account is an amount held at FirstRand Bank Limited and serves as security for the other
financial liability as per note 11 held at FirstRand Bank Limited.

The amount bears interest at prime less 5% (2019: prime less 5%)

Non-current assets
At amortised cost 1,551,527 1,000,575 - -

7. Operating lease asset (accrual)

Non-current assets 3,994,877 5,867,938 248,218 305,163
Current assets 1,873,061 2,262,965 56,944 49,054

5,867,938 8,130,903 305,162 354,217

The difference between the amounts recognised as rental income received on a straight-line basis over the lease
term and the contractual income is recognised as an operating lease asset.
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Group Trust

12. Deferred tax

Deferred tax liability (1,720,767) (2,352,630) - -
Deferred tax asset 291,170 359,752 - -

Total net deferred tax liability (1,429,597) (1,992,878) - -

The major components of the deferred tax balance are as follows:

Deferred tax liability
Arising as a result of temporary
differences on: 
Operating lease adjustments (1,643,022) (2,276,653) - -
Prepaid expenses (77,745) (75,977) - -

Total deferred tax liability (1,720,767) (2,352,630) - -

Deferred tax asset
Arising as a result of temporary
differences on: 
Income received in advance 122,093 359,752 - -
Provision for doubtful debts 169,077 - - -

Total deferred tax asset 291,170 359,752

Reconciliation of deferred tax asset/(liability)

At beginning of year (1,992,878) (2,269,852) - -

Recognised in surplus or deficit:
Movement in temporary differences on
operating lease asset

633,630 375,708 - -

Reversing temporary differences on
prepaid expenses

(1,768) (2,657) - -

Movement in temporary differences on
income received in advance

(237,659) (96,077) - -

Movement in temporary differences on
provision for doubtful debts

169,078 - - -

563,281 276,974 - -

At end of year (1,429,597) (1,992,878) - -

Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Group Trust

Figures in Rand 2020 2019 2020 2019

10. Retained income (continued)

Closing balance resulting from operating
profit

55,382,385 51,105,595 7,971,429 17,369,100

Closing balance 274,467,346 314,649,880 75,457,233 84,854,904

11. Borrowings

At amortised cost
FirstRand Bank Limited 59,324,087 68,776,568 - -

The City of Cape Town 1,018,699 908,232 1,018,699 908,232

60,342,786 69,684,800 1,018,699 908,232

Non-current liabilities
At amortised cost 48,277,428 59,649,373 829,327 829,327

Current liabilities
At amortised cost 12,065,358 10,035,427 189,372 78,905

60,342,786 69,684,800 1,018,699 908,232

The loan bears interest at a fixed rate of 10.35% 
per annum (2019: fixed rate of 10.35%) and is 
repayable in monthly instalments ranging 
between R 1,485,234 and R 1,645,754 over 5 
years from inception.The loan is secured by 
leasehold improvements with a book value of 
R243,812,062.

T h e  l o a n  i s  f u r t h e r  s e c u r e d  b y  K B D 
Management's Proprietary Limited shares in KBD 
Retail Proprietary Limited, KBD Management's 
Proprietary Limited land lease as well as cession 
of all current and future receivables, revenues 
and cash balances to the company.

The liability bears interest at 10% (2019:10%) per 
annum. The original capital of R 1,420,290 is 
repayable in annual instalments of R 78,905 
together with any interest due for the year 
commencing on November 2007, with the final 
payment on 31 December 2025

The fair value of the loan is approximated by its 
amortised cost as it bears interest at market-
related rates
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15. Revenue

Rental income 39,977,826 38,542,565 140,318 140,318
Straight line lease adjustment (2,262,965) (1,341,814) - -
Operating costs recovered 12,690,005 14,097,486 - -

50,404,866 51,298,237 140,318 140,318

16. Other income

Reversal of USDG accrual - 1,986,818 - 1,986,818
Reversal of prior over provision of VDP 229,529 - 229,529 -
Other income 265,342 22,391 2,000,022 1,675,349

494,871 2,009,209 2,229,551 3,662,167

17. Operating surplus (deficit)

Operating surplus (deficit) for the year is stated after accounting for the following:

Operating lease charges
Premises
� Contractual amounts 460,890 426,092 460,889 426,091

Property, plant and equipment - (3,997) - (3,997)
Impairment on loans to group
companies

- - 137,222 204,159

Impairments 992,799 300,000 - -
Depreciation on property, plant and
equipment

73,530 59,367 53,460 59,367

Employee costs 5,370,818 4,977,104 5,315,809 4,828,725

18. Investment revenue

Interest revenue
Bank 780,593 54,846 393,887 18,876
Interest charged on trade and other
receivables

83,024 121,638 - -

Other interest 2,581 - 2,581 -

866,198 176,484 396,468 18,876

19. Fair value adjustments

Erf 58857 and erf 58858, Khayelitsha - 120,000 - 120,000
Khayelitsha Retail Centre (44,469,324) 25,388,053 - -
Erf 75008, Khayelitsha 10,000 170,000

(44,459,324) 25,678,053 - 120,000

Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Group Trust

Figures in Rand 2020 2019 2020 2019

13. Loans to (from) group companies

Subsidiaries

KBD Management Proprietary Limited

The KBD Management Proprietary
Limited loan is unsecured, interest free
and repayable on demand. 

- - 1,125,944 1,115,483

KBD Retail Properties Proprietary
Limited

The loan is unsecured, interest free and
is repayable upon recovery  from
developers electricity contribution.

- - (3,600,699) -

KBD Retail Properties Proprietary
Limited

The loan is unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand.

- - (4,421,981) (4,547,764)

KBD Housing Proprietary Limited

The KBD Housing Proprietary loan is
unsecured, interest free and is repayable
on demand. 

The loan has been subordinated in
favour of the company's other creditors
until such time that its assets exceed its
liabilities.

  

- - 2,423,764 2,297,003

- - (4,472,972) (1,135,278)
Impairment of loans to subsidiaries - - (3,549,708) (3,412,486)

- - (8,022,680) (4,547,764)

14. Trade and other payables

Trade payables 196,937 117,680 115,106 110,926
Amounts received in advance 436,048 1,158,134 - -
VAT 284,533 628,927 278,341 627,967
Retention fee payable - 126,694 - -
Accrued leave pay 133,130 44,930 133,130 44,930
Accrued expenses 2,604,924 2,511,579 - -
Deposits received 1,812,455 1,726,760 - -
Other payables 117,353 - 221,096 101,743

5,585,380 6,314,704 747,673 885,566
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22. Cash generated from (used in) operations

(Deficit) surplus before taxation (34,775,564) 43,162,801 (9,397,671) (4,642,602)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 73,530 59,367 53,460 59,367
Deficit on sale of assets - 3,997 - 3,997
Interest received (866,198) (176,484) (396,468) (18,876)
Finance costs 7,369,878 5,505,815 110,467 102,577
Fair value adjustments 44,459,324 (25,678,053) - (120,000)
Impairment deficit 992,799 300,000 137,222 204,159
Movements in operating lease assets
and accruals

2,262,965 1,341,813 49,055 41,164

Non cash loan movement - - (207,388) (456,425)
Non cash interest on borrowings - - 110,467 -
Changes in working capital:
Trade and other receivables (5,026,824) 1,888,082 142,027 278,845
Trade and other payables (729,324) (4,638,672) (137,893) (1,259,573)

13,760,586 21,768,666 (9,536,722) (5,807,367)

23. Tax paid

Balance at beginning of the year (3,763,503) (3,548,599) (160,323) (160,323)
Current tax for the year recognised in
loss

(5,970,251) (7,149,251) - -

Balance at end of the year 7,149,293 3,763,503 160,323 160,323

(2,584,461) (6,934,347) - -

Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020
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Group Trust

Figures in Rand 2020 2019 2020 2019

20. Finance costs

Borrowings 7,200,023 5,368,782 110,467 102,577
Bank 151 193 - -
Tax authorities 169,704 136,840 - -

7,369,878 5,505,815 110,467 102,577

21. Taxation

Major components of the tax expense

Current taxation
South African normal tax - year 5,900,254 7,026,868 - -
South African normal tax - prior period
(over) under provision

69,997 122,383 - -

5,970,251 7,149,251 - -

Deferred taxation
South African deferred tax - current year (563,281) (276,974) - -

5,406,970 6,872,277 - -

Reconciliation of the tax expense

Reconciliation between accounting surplus and tax expense.

Accounting deficit (34,775,564) 43,162,801 (9,397,671) (4,642,602)

Tax at the applicable tax rate of 28%
(2019: 28%)

(9,737,158) 12,085,584 (2,631,348) (1,299,929)

Tax effect of adjustments on taxable
income
Exempt income
Exempt income (39,289) (595,598) (39,289) (595,598)

(39,289) (595,598) (39,289) (595,598)

Non-deductible expenses
Disallowable charges 1,264,019 1,554,211 1,238,890 1,478,860

1,264,019 1,554,211 1,238,890 1,478,860

Other
Effect of consolidation eliminations (15,111) 467,784 - -
Recognised in equity (56,000) (56,000) (56,000) (56,000)
Prior year income in advance differences 19,805 82,372 - -
Fair value adjustment 12,448,611 (7,189,855) - -
Tax loss not recognised 28,075 35,744 1,487,747 472,667
Utilisation of assessed loss 1,494,018 488,035 - -

13,919,398 (6,171,920) 1,431,747 416,667

5,406,970 6,872,277 - -
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24. Related parties (continued)

Key management personnel and trustee compensation

Short-term employee benefits 3,935,883 3,934,075 3,935,883 3,934,075
Trustees fees 672,018 738,630 672,018 738,630

4,607,901 4,672,705 4,607,901 4,672,705

25. Commitments

Operating leases – as lessee (expense)

Minimum lease payments due
 - within one year 218,613 430,793 218,613 430,793
 - in second to fifth year inclusive 147,529 366,142 147,529 366,142

366,142 796,935 366,142 796,935

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by t he group f or certain of its office properties. Leases are
negotiated for an average term of seven years and rentals are fixed for an average of three years. No contingent
rent is payable.

Operating leases – as lessor (income)

Minimum lease payments due
 - within one year 24,761,288 36,998,431 197,263 189,372
 - in second to fifth year inclusive 30,778,425 55,008,098 867,955 836,393
 - later than five years - 5,613,996 3,367,628 3,596,452

55,539,713 97,620,525 4,432,846 4,622,217

Group income

Operating lease receipts represent rental receivables by KBD Retail Properties Proprietary Limited for retail space
in the Khayelitsha Retail Centre.

Trust income

Operating lease receipts represent rental receivable by the trust on land leased to KBD Management Proprietary
Limited. The trust has leased the land to KBD Management Proprietary Limited since 07 March 2005.

Figures in Rand 2020 2019 2020 2019

Group Trust
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Figures in Rand 2020 2019 2020 2019

24. Related parties

`

Relationships

Direct subsidiary KBD Management Proprietary Limited
Indirect subsidiaries KBD Retail Properties Proprietary Limited

KBD Housing Proprietary Limited
Members of key management M X Gaula (CEO)

S B Titus-Nabe (CFO)
F Sulaiman (Property Portfolio Manager)
T Jemsana (Development Manager)

Non-executive trustees B Belu-Toni
M Maxongo
N L Tyhido
B van Staaden
P Makeleni
F Mpetha
S Jozi
Z A Mbalo
R Dyantyi

Related party balances and transactions 

Related party balances

Loan accounts - Owing (to) by related parties
KBD Management Proprietary Limited 1,125,944 1,115,483
KBD Management Proprietary Limited - Impairment (1,125,944) (1,115,483)
KBD Housing Proprietary Limited 2,423,764 2,297,003
KBD Housing Proprietary Limited - Impairment (2,423,764) (2,297,003)
KBD Retail Properties Proprietary Limited (4,421,981) (4,547,764)
KBD Retail Properties Proprietary Limited (3,600,699) -

Amounts included in Trade receivable regarding related parties
KBD Management Proprietary Limited 6,000,000 6,000,000

Amounts included in trade payables regarding related parties
KBD Housing Proprietary Limited 103,743 101,743

Amounts included in trade receivables regarding related parties
KBD Retail Properties Proprietary Limited 152,121 235,874

Amount included in contingent rental receivable from related
parties
KBD Management Proprietary Limited 5,285,545 11,053,874

Related party transactions

Rent paid to (received from) related parties
KBD Management Proprietary Limited 140,318 140,318

Other income from related parties
KBD Retail Properties Proprietary Limited 1,840,459 1,675,349
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27. Financial liabilities by category

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:

Group - 2020

Financial
liabilities at
amortised

cost

Total

Borrowings 60,342,785 60,342,785
Trade and other payables 4,614,314 4,614,314

64,957,099 64,957,099

Group - 2019

Financial
liabilities at
amortised

cost

Total

Borrowings 69,684,800 69,684,800
Trade and other payables 4,406,440 4,406,440
Bank overdraft 1,946 1,946

74,093,186 74,093,186

Trust - 2020

Financial
liabilities at
amortised

cost

Total

Loans from group companies 8,022,680 8,022,680
Borrowings 1,018,699 1,018,699
Trade and other payables 218,847 218,847

9,260,226 9,260,226

Trust - 2019

Financial
liabilities at
amortised

cost

Total

Loans from group companies 4,547,764 4,547,764
Borrowings 908,232 908,232
Trade and other payables 212,669 212,669

5,668,665 5,668,665
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26. Financial assets by category

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:

Group - 2020

Financial Assets
at authorised cost

Total

Trade and other receivables 6,901,092 6,901,092
Other financial assets 1,551,527 1,551,527
Cash and cash equivalents 18,471,052 18,471,052

26,923,671 26,923,671

Group - 2019

Total

Trade and other receivables 2,667,493 2,667,493
Other financial assets 1,000,575 1,000,575
Cash and cash equivalents 25,276,763 25,276,763

28,944,831 28,944,831

Trust - 2020

Total

Contingent rental receivable 5,285,545 5,285,545
Cash and cash equivalents 4,420,414 4,420,414

9,705,959 9,705,959

Trust - 2019

Total

Contingent rental receivable 11,053,874 11,053,874
Trade and other receivables 6,284,513 6,284,513
Cash and cash equivalents 4,405,618 4,405,618

21,744,005 21,744,005

Group Trust

Figures in Rand 2020 2019 2020 2019

Financial Assets
at authorised cost

Financial Assets
at authorised cost

Financial Assets
at authorised cost
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Revenue

Rental income 39,977,826 38,542,565 140,318 140,318

Straight line lease adjustment (2,262,965) (1,341,814) - -

Operating costs recovered 12,690,005 14,097,486 - -

15 50,404,866 51,298,237 140,318 140,318

Other income

Reversal of USDG accrual - 1,986,818 - 1,986,818

Reversal of prior over provision of VDP 229,529 - 229,529 -

Other income 265,342 22,391 2,000,022 1,675,349

Fair value adjustments 19 10,000 25,678,053 - 120,000

504,871 27,687,262 2,229,551 3,782,167

Operating expenses

Advertising 502,300 473,048 412,600 277,882

Amortisation of debt restructuring fee 80,903 6,742 - -

Auditors remuneration 660,189 629,501 375,426 367,553

Auditors remuneration - Internal 119,970 167,410 119,970 167,410

Bank charges 58,790 59,317 9,497 9,191

Cleaning 1,060,456 1,040,520 - -

Community liason services 811,693 389,211 - -

Computer expenses 107,466 70,592 15,241 12,248

Conference expenses 90,254 118,197 90,254 118,197

Consulting fees 624,530 723,862 - -

Consumables 12,135 29,573 - -

Depreciation and impairments 1,066,329 359,367 190,682 263,526

Donations - 17,437 - 17,437

Employee costs 5,370,818 4,977,104 5,315,809 4,828,725

Entertainment 85,834 51,303 85,834 51,303

Insurance 564,908 453,561 176,088 157,454

Lease rentals on operating lease 460,890 426,092 460,889 426,091

Legal expenses 538,074 709,210 193,936 65,300

Other expenses 102,073 - - -

Payroll services 21,236 16,157 21,236 16,157

Postage 102,304 95,558 102,304 95,558

Printing and stationery 233,995 122,700 192,224 106,760

Profit and loss on sale of assets - 3,997 - 3,997

Promotions 329,491 166,041 - -

Property management - Letting
Commission

423,831 353,496 - -

Rates 3,310,388 3,509,211 4,140 3,603

Repairs and maintenance 1,716,083 1,701,230 12,861 17,158

Secretarial, accounting and taxation
services

286,949 481,073 260,640 460,447

Security 3,679,159 3,422,460 9,406 8,690

Staff welfare 15,652 60,800 - 60,800

Substation expenditure 3,158,508 - 3,158,508 -

Sundry expenses 236,649 207,370 55,816 46,609

Telephone and fax 68,861 82,127 36,506 43,039

Group Trust

Figures in Rand Notes 2020 2019 2020 2019

Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020
Detailed Income Statement

Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

28.  First-time adoption of the International Financial Reporting Standards for Small and Medium-sized Entities. 

The group has applied the International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities, for the �rst 
time for the 2020 year end. On principle this standard has been applied retrospectively and the 2019 comparatives 
contained in these annual �nancial statements may differ from those published in the annual �nancial statements 
published for the year ended 30 June 2019. The date of transition was 01 July 2018. There was no impact to opening 
retained income as at the 01 July 2018 or the comparative information at 30 June 2019 on the transition from 
International Financial Reporting Standard to International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized 
Entities. 

29. Events after the reporting period 

Within the context of the current epidemic (COVID-19), the global picture remains uncertain and is evolving rapidly. At 
this stage, it is dif�cult to measure the consequences in 2020 on business activity. Management has considered the 
current cash position and forecasts and based on this assessment, the entity will be able to service its obligations for the 
foreseeable future. 

There has been a rapid land invasion in Khayelitsha and surrounding communities, where the Khayelitsha CBD land 
earmarked for housing development has been affected. A spoilation order and interdict was granted by the High Court 
to KCT and the Sheriff of the Court has been consulted to act on this interdict. The land invasions may impact negatively 
the prospects of the planned housing development and therefore impact the going concern of KBD Housing Proprietary 
Limited should the planned projects be cancelled due to the invasions. 

The trustees are not aware of any other material event which occurred after the reporting date and up to the date of this 
report.
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Tender costs 200 174 200 174

Training 20,130 26,245 350 20,767

Travel - local 32,467 997 2,000 997

Trustees fees 672,018 738,630 672,018 738,630

Utilities - Electricity 6,465,405 6,497,145 79,106 95,683

Utilities - Meter reading 48,392 45,226 - -

Utilities - Refuse and sewerage 970,644 1,252,251 - -

Utilities - Water 602,323 1,008,432 - -

34,712,297 30,493,367 12,053,541 8,481,386

Operating surplus (deficit) 17 16,197,440 48,492,132 (9,683,672) (4,558,901)

Investment income 20 866,198 176,484 396,468 18,876

Finance costs 20 (7,369,878) (5,505,815) (110,467) (102,577)

Fair value adjustments 19 (44,469,324) - - -

(50,973,004) (5,329,331) 286,001 (83,701)

(Deficit) surplus before taxation (34,775,564) 43,162,801 (9,397,671) (4,642,602)

Taxation 21 (5,406,970) (6,872,277) - -

(Deficit) surplus for the year (40,182,534) 36,290,524 (9,397,671) (4,642,602)

Group Trust

Figures in Rand Notes 2020 2019 2020 2019

Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020
Detailed Income Statement

The Supplementary information presented does not form part of the annual �nancial statements and is unaudited.
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NOTES
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